SAMARA

ASSET GROUP

MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM) OF:
SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC.

Wednesday, 28" June 2023

An Annual General Meeting [AGM] of Samara Asset Group PLC was convened on Wednesday the
28 of June 2023 at: 66/67, “Beatrice”, Amery Street, Sliema, SLM 1707, Malta at 17:00hrs.

Present:
Board Members

Mr. Patrick Lowry [Chief Executive Officer, Director] - PL
Mr. Jefim Gewiet [Executive Director] —JG

Excused:

Board Members
Dr. Joerg Werner [Non-Executive Director] - JW
Shareholders:

All five (5) shareholders holding, in aggregate 67% of the total number of issued shares were
present at the annual general meeting by proxy.

e Apeiron Investment Group PLC: 29,165,553 shares?

e Grey Study Capital GmbH: 7,938,992 shares?

¢ Universal Investment Gesellschaft mbH: 20,000 shares
e Sir James Brookes Holdings Pte Ltd: 19,840 shares

e Camomille Global Opportunities Fund: 1,320,000 shares

Total shares represented: 38,464,385 shares

Other participants:

Mr. Edwin Zammit [Chief Financial Officer] — EZ

Dr. Michael Calleja [Company Secretary] — MC

Mr. Mark Bugeja [obo of the Auditors, Grant Thornton in his capacity as Managing Partner] - MB
Mr. Rafael Ras [obo of the Auditors, Grant Thornton] - RR

1 The quantity of shares is a best approximation, as the exact figure is found within the customer's depository account in
the Clearstream system.
2 The quantity of shares is a best approximation, as the exact figure is found within the customer's depository account in
the Clearstream system.
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The following items discussed as circulated on the Agenda of the General Meeting of the
Shareholders.

Opening of the Meeting.

The Director Mr. Jefim Gewiet, obo Samara Asset Group PLC (the “Company”) welcomed the
participants of the Annual General Meeting (AGM) and declared the meeting open.

Calling the Meeting to Order.

The Meeting was called to order at approximately 17:15hrs

Nomination and Appointment of a Chairman.

It was decided to nominate Mr. Jefim Gewiet as the Chairman of the Meeting.

The motion was passed unanimously as initially proposed during the Notice to Convene the
Company’s Annual General Meeting.

V.

Confirmation of Quorum (not less than 51% of the members holding an equivalent paid-
up voting share capital of the company).

The Company Secretary informed all persons present that he had received five (5) proxy form
nominations accordingly including (1) from the Malta Stock Exchange PLC as Custodians of
Clearstream Banking AG.

The five (5) proxy forms received were as follows:

Proxy Nomination Form from Grey Study Capital GmbH (representing 13.90% of the
issued share capital of the company).

Proxy Nomination Form from Apeiron Investment Group Ltd (representing 50.94% of the
issued share capital of the company).

Proxy Nomination Form from the Universal Investment Gesellschaft mbH received from
the MSE as Custodians of Clearstream) — (representing 0.0349% of the issued share capital
of the company).

Proxy Nomination Form from Camomille Global Opportunities Fund (representing
2.3067% of the issued share capital of the company)

Proxy Nomination Form from Sir James Brookes Holdings Pte Ltd. (representing 0.035%
of the issued share capital of the company)

These being the only proxy forms submitted to the Company Secretary, a quorum of more than
51% was reached (considering the aggregate representation of the entire number of shares
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entitled to vote and participate during the Annual General Meeting was that of 67%) and the
meeting could commence accordingly.

The proxy forms are being attached to these minutes and hereinafter marked as ‘Annex 1’.
V.  Recording the Attendance at the Meeting and Adoption of the List of votes.
All Shareholders were offered the possibility to participate in the meeting and exercise

their rights as per instructions established in Section D of the Official Notice convening the
AGM.

The full list of members entitled to participate and vote at the Annual General Meeting
[AGM], as at Record Date 28" of May 2023 were as follows:

Member Number of Proxy Instructions
Shares
MALTA STOCK EXCHANGE PLC [See Proxy
Registration No: C 42525 inati
1 ASgCUSTODIAN OF CLEARSTREAM BANKING AG - Sl Nol:rzlrr::;on
CUSTOMERS ACCOUNT

Proxy Instructions

Shares not linked to Clearstream

2 | MARC THOMAS FORSTER 40,000 None

3 | JAMES BREWSTER WEINSTOCK 50,000 None

After noting that the formal 21-day notice-period of the meeting had been duly given and
consented to by all shareholders of the company and having also noted the other consents and
waivers given by all shareholders of the Company, the meeting was called to order by the
Chairman, who declared that the meeting was duly convened.

VI.  Election of one or two persons to verify the minutes.

Mr. Jefim Gewiet [Director] and Mr. Patrick Lowry [Director & CEO] were nominated and
appointed as the two (2) persons who will verify the minutes.

VIl.  Presentation of two sets of audited financial statements (both audited &
consolidated).

Both sets of audited accounts for financial year ended 31/12/2022 were presented to all members
present by Mr. Rafael Ras [obo Grant Thornton].
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VIIl.  Ordinary Resolution: Receipt and approval of both the Audited Financial Statements
and the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of Samara Asset Group PLC (Annual
Report) of the Company for the year ended 31st December 2022 and the Directors’
Report for the year ending 31st December 2022 and the Auditors’ Report for the year
ending 31st December 2022.

The Chairman noted that the Reported Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended
31°t December 2022 together with the Directors’ Report and Auditor’s Report thereon had been
duly circulated to all persons entitled to attend the meeting prior to the meeting together with,
inter alia, the agenda. It was resolved that the said documents were duly circulated.

Mr. Rafael Ras and Mr. Mark Bugeja [participating via conference call] presented the Annual
Report for both the subsidiary company Samara Advisory Ltd and the consolidated Report of the
Group for the financial year 2022, providing a summary of the Company’s financial position and
highlights from the previous financial year. The Annual Report is available on the Company’s
website.

Mr. Mark Bugeja clarified to the Board that in determining the fair value of the investments sold
post year-end, Grant Thornton employed the mutually agreed price of EUR 5,300 in relation to
Block.One shares. For the Board's understanding, he elaborated that they were auditing the
financial standing as of 31/12/2022, thus necessitating a valuation of these investments at that
specific point in time.

Given the challenges posed by the volatile nature of the investments and their subsequent sale
at an agreed price, it was collectively decided to base the valuation on the year-end value. It is
crucial to document this decision, as Grant Thornton had to adopt a practical perspective on this
matter. Mr. Bugeja further emphasized that pinpointing the exact value as of 31/12/2022 would
have been excessively burdensome due to the volatility inherent in virtual assets.

The filing of the Annual Reports with the Malta Business Registry (MBR) and Inland Revenue
Department (IRD) will be conducted by Samara Asset Group PLC and Grant Thornton respectively.

There being no questions or comments as to the financial statements presented, it was resolved
to approve the financial statements of the company, the Directors’ Report and the Auditor’s
Report for the financial year ending 31° December 2022.

The shareholders have resolved to approve the Financial Statements
of the Company and the Consolidated Financial Statements, the
Director’s Report and the Auditor’s Report for the financial year
ending 31° December 2022.

For: 38,444,385 (67.18%)

Votes Against: 0 (0%)

Abstained: 20,000 (0.03%)

Ordinary Resolution
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The Ordinary Resolution was approved with a majority of 99.95% of
Outcome the votes cast by the members present and entitled to vote at the
general meeting.

IX.  Ordinary Resolution: To appoint the auditors of the Company and to authorise the Board
of Directors to fix their remuneration.

It was resolved to appoint Grant Thornton as the auditors of the company until the end of the
next Annual General Meeting and to empower the Directors to negotiate and agree the auditor’s
fees directly with said auditors — payable in accordance with the approved invoices.

The fees were established at approximately €45,200 up and until the next Annual General
Meeting (excluding professional and ancillary expenses).

The shareholders have resolved to appoint Grant Thornton as
Auditors of the Company.

For: 38,444,385 (67.18%)

Votes Against: 0 (0%)

Abstained: 20,000 (0.03%)

The Ordinary Resolution was approved with a majority of 99.95% of
Outcome the votes cast by the members present and entitled to vote at the
general meeting.

Ordinary Resolution

X.  Election and composition of the new Board of Directors and Chairman of the Board of
Directors (including confirmation of Directors’ Fees/Emoluments)

It was proposed to re-appoint Mr. Jefim Gewiet and Dr. Joerg Werner as Directors of the
Company for the period until the end of the next Annual General Meeting.

The shareholders have resolved to confirm the appointment of both
Mr. Jefim Gewiet and Dr. Joerg Werner as directors until the next
Annual General Meeting (AGM). Mr. Patrick Lowry will continue to
serve as CEO & Chairman of the Board of Directors.

For: 37,104,545 (64.84%)

Votes Against: 0 (0%)

Abstained: 1,359,840 (2.38%)

The Ordinary Resolution was approved with a majority of 96.47% of
Outcome the votes cast by the members present and entitled to vote at the
general meeting.

Ordinary Resolution

It was proposed to confirm the Directors’ emoluments and that these remain unchanged as per
previous AGM and subsequent EGMs accordingly.

The shareholders have resolved to confirm the Directors’

Ordinary Resolution . . . .
y emoluments for carrying out their duties for the year commencing
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on the date of this annual general meeting until the end of the next
annual general meeting.

For: 37,104,545 (64.84%)

Votes Against: 0 (0%)

Abstained: 1,359,840 (2.38%)

The Ordinary Resolution was approved with a majority of 96.47% of
Outcome the votes cast by the members present and entitled to vote at the
general meeting.

Xl.  Any other matters arising.
No other considerations or matters were presented during the course of the meeting.
Xll.  Closing of the Meeting.
There being no further business, JG, the Chairman of the Annual General Meeting, declared the
meeting closed. The Chairman noted that all resolutions put forward for a vote have been

adopted.

Meeting was adjourned, sine die, at 18:00 hrs.

Minutes approved and signed by the nominated Chairman.

~ /L uf

Mr. Jefim Gewiet (Chairman)

In witness thereof:

(htidy

Dr. Michael Calleja (Company Secretary).
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Minutes reviewed and approved by:

MR. JEFIM GEWIET & MR. PATRICK LOWRY

Annexes

Annex 1 - Proxy Form Nominations.

Annex 2 — Agenda circulated to members.

Annex 3 - Notice to Convene SAG’s PLC’s Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders.

=#errrrex 571 — Samara Asset Group PLC — Approved Annual Report 2022. (Annex 4.1)
=herrrer=5-2 — Samara Asset Group PLC — Approved Consolidated Annual Report 2022. (Annex 4.2)
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ANNEX A - PROXY FORM 1
FORM OF PROXY

VOTING PREFERENCES

As a Shareholder of Samara Asset Group PLC (C 84355), | hereby appoint the
duly appointed Chairman of the AGM as my proxy to vote on my behalf, at the

Annual General Meeting (AGM) and at any adjournment thereof:

Date 27 June 2023 Name of Shareholder Apeiron Investment Group Ltd.

— . 1)
Signature of Shareholder __ |ulien Hr“h
0

THE CHAIRMAN IS AUTHORISED TO VOTE AS HE DEEMS FIT

THE CHAIRMAN WILL VOTE AS INDICATED IN THE HEREUNDER
RESOLUTIONS PANEL v

PROXY FORM BY ELECTRONIC MEANS
VOTING PREFERENCES

To be completed when sending Proxy Form by electronic means
Name of Shareholder Apeiron Investment Group Ltd

_— . [}
Signature of Shareholder__ ]u'um ﬂ‘“ﬁ

Telephone/Mobile Phone Number 356.9960.9158
E-mail address iulien.hoefer@apeiron-investments.com

A proxy form sent by electronic means is only valid upon confirmation by

the Company Secretary.
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ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

VOTING PREFERENCES

FILL IN ONE OF THE FOLLOWING BOXES FOR | AGAINST | ABSTAIN
AUDITED ACCOUNTS N
APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS v
ORDINAY RESOLUTION
VOTING PREFERENCES
CONFIRMATION OF DIRECTORS’
v

FEES/EMOLUMENTS

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

In terms of Article 110, ‘An election of Directors shall
take place at every annual general meeting of the
Company. All Directors, except a Managing Director,
shall retire from office at least once every three (3)

years. The following Directors are eligible for re-

election:
MR. JEFIM GEWIET \/
DR. JOERG WERNER v
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ANNEX B — PROXY FORM 2

Where a Member holds Shares for and on behalf of third parties, such Member is entitled
to grant a proxy to each such third party or other persons designated by the third party, and
the instrument appointing the proxies shall, to permit votes attaching to Shares to be cast
differently than others, be in the following form or in a form as near thereto as circumstances

permit;

FORM OF PROXY

VOTING PREFERENCES

As a Member holding Shares for and on behalf of third parties in Samara
Asset Group PLC (C 84355), | hereby appoint the duly appointed Chairman of
the AGM as my proxy to vote on my behalf, at the Annual General Meeting

(AGM) and at any adjournment thereof:

Date Name of Shareholder

Signature of Shareholder

THE CHAIRMAN IS AUTHORISED TO VOTE AS HE DEEMS FIT

THE CHAIRMAN WILL VOTE AS INDICATED IN THE HEREUNDER
RESOLUTIONS PANEL

PROXY FORM BY ELECTRONIC MEANS

VOTING PREFERENCES

To be completed when sending Proxy Form by electronic means

Name of Shareholder

Signature of Shareholder

Telephone/Mobile Phone Number

E-mail address

A proxy form sent by electronic means is only valid upon confirmation

by the Company Secretary.
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ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS
VOTING PREFERENCES
FILL IN ONE OF THE FOLLOWING BOXES
AUDITED ACCOUNTS

FOR

AGAINST

ABSTAIN

APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS

ORDINARY RESOLUTION

VOTING PREFERENCES

FILL IN ONE OF THE FOLLOWING BOXES
CONFIRMATION OF DIRECTORS’ FEES/EMOLUMENTS

FOR

AGAINST

ABSTAIN

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

In terms of Article 110, ‘An election of Directors shall take
place at every annual general meeting of the Company. All
Directors, except a Managing Director, shall retire from
office at least once every three (3) years. The following

Directors are eligible for re-election:

FILL IN ONE OF THE FOLLOWING BOXES

FOR | AGAINST

ABSTAIN

MR. JEFIM GEWIET

DR. JOERG WERNER
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ANNEX A - PROXY FORM 1
FORM OF PROXY

VOTING PREFERENCES

As a Shareholder of Samara Asset Group PLC (C 84355), | hereby appoint the
duly appointed Chairman of the AGM as my proxy to vote on my behalf, at the
Annual General Meeting (AGM) and at any adjournment thereof:

Date 14/06/2023 Name of Shareholder Camomille Global Opportunities Fund
Signature of Shareholder

THE CHAIRMAN IS AUTHORISED TO VOTE AS HE DEEMS FIT

THE CHAIRMAN WILL VOTE AS INDICATED IN THE HEREUNDER
RESOLUTIONS PANEL

PROXY FORM BY ELECTRONIC MEANS

VOTING PREFERENCES

To be completed when sending Proxy Form by electronic means

Name of Shareholder Camomille Global Opportunities Fund
. 2

Signature of Shareholder ;’/

Telephone/Mobile Phone Number __+27 79 526 0928

E-mail address nic@inverson.co.za

A proxy form sent by electronic means is only valid upon confirmation by

the Company Secretary.
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ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS
VOTING PREFERENCES

FILL IN ONE OF THE FOLLOWING BOXES FOR | AGAINST | ABSTAIN
AUDITED ACCOUNTS X
APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS X
VOTING PREFERENCES
FOR | AGAINST | ABSTAIN

FILL IN ONE OF THE FOLLOWING BOXES

CONFIRMATION OF DIRECTORS’
FEES/EMOLUMENTS

X

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

In terms of Article 110, ‘An election of Directors shall
take place at every annual general meeting of the
Company. All Directors, except a Managing Director,
shall retire from office at least once every three (3)
years. The following Directors are eligible for re-

election:

FILL IN ONE OF THE FOLLOWING BOXES

FOR

AGAINST

ABSTAIN

MR. JEFIM GEWIET

X

DR. JOERG WERNER

X
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ANNEX A - PROXY FORM 1
FORM OF PROXY

VOTING PREFERENCES

As a Shareholder of Samara Asset Group PLC (C 84355), | hereby appoint the
duly appointed Chairman of the AGM as my proxy to vote on my behalf, at the

Annual General Meeting (AGM) and at any adjournment thereof:

Date 27.06.2023 Name%eholder Grey Study Capital GmbH
B

Signature of Shareholder

THE CHAIRMAN IS AUTHORISED TO VOTE AS HE DEEMS FIT

THE CHAIRMAN WILL VOTE AS INDICATED IN THE HEREUNDER
RESOLUTIONS PANEL

PROXY FORM BY ELECTRONIC MEANS

VOTING PREFERENCES

To be completed when sending Proxy Form by electronic means
Name of Shareholder Grey Study Capital GmbH

Signature of Shareholde/ / P
Telephone/Mobile Phone Nufber +491728510074
E-mail address jv@greystudy.de

A proxy form sent by electronic means is only valid upon confirmation by

the Company Secretary.
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ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

VOTING PREFERENCES

FILL IN ONE OF THE FOLLOWING BOXES

FOR

AGAINST | ABSTAIN

AUDITED ACCOUNTS

x

APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS

X

ORDINAY RESOLUTION
VOTING PREFERENCES

FILL IN ONE OF THE FOLLOWING BOXES

FOR

AGAINST

ABSTAIN

CONFIRMATION OF DIRECTORS’ X
FEES/EMOLUMENTS

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

In terms of Article 110, ‘An election of Directors shall
take place at every annual general meeting of the
Company. All Directors, except a Managing Director,
shall retire from office at least once every three (3)
years. The following Directors are eligible for re-

election:

FOR

AGAINST

ABSTAIN

MR. JEFIM GEWIET

FILL IN ONE OF THE FOLLOWING BOXES
X

DR. JOERG WERNER
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ANNEX B — PROXY FORM 2

Where a Member holds Shares for and on behalf of third parties, such Member is entitled
to grant a proxy to each such third party or other persons designated by the third party, and
the instrument appointing the proxies shall, to permit votes attaching to Shares to be cast
differently than others, be in the following form or in a form as near thereto as circumstances

permit;

FORM OF PROXY

VOTING PREFERENCES

As a Member holding Shares for and on behalf of third parties in Samara
Asset Group PLC (C 84355), | hereby appoint the duly appointed Chairman of
the AGM as my proxy to vote on my behalf, at the Annual General Meeting

(AGM) and at any adjournment thereof:

Date Name of Shareholder

Signature of Shareholder

THE CHAIRMAN IS AUTHORISED TO VOTE AS HE DEEMS FIT

THE CHAIRMAN WILL VOTE AS INDICATED IN THE HEREUNDER
RESOLUTIONS PANEL

PROXY FORM BY ELECTRONIC MEANS

VOTING PREFERENCES

To be completed when sending Proxy Form by electronic means

Name of Shareholder

Signature of Shareholder

Telephone/Mobile Phone Number

E-mail address

A proxy form sent by electronic means is only valid upon confirmation

by the Company Secretary.
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ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS
VOTING PREFERENCES
FILL IN ONE OF THE FOLLOWING BOXES
AUDITED ACCOUNTS

FOR

AGAINST

ABSTAIN

APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS

ORDINARY RESOLUTION

VOTING PREFERENCES

FILL IN ONE OF THE FOLLOWING BOXES
CONFIRMATION OF DIRECTORS’ FEES/EMOLUMENTS

FOR

AGAINST

ABSTAIN

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

In terms of Article 110, ‘An election of Directors shall take
place at every annual general meeting of the Company. All
Directors, except a Managing Director, shall retire from
office at least once every three (3) years. The following

Directors are eligible for re-election:

FILL IN ONE OF THE FOLLOWING BOXES

FOR | AGAINST

ABSTAIN

MR. JEFIM GEWIET

DR. JOERG WERNER
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ANNEX A - PROXY FORM 1
FORM OF PROXY

VOTING PREFERENCES

As a Shareholder of Samara Asset Group PLC (C 84355), | hereby appoint the
duly appointed Chairman of the AGM as my proxy to vote on my behalf, at the
Annual General Meeting (AGM) and at any adjournment thereof:

Date 14/06/2023 Name of Shareholder _Sir James Brookes Holdings Pte Ltd

Signature of Shareholder

THE CHAIRMAN IS AUTHORISED TO VOTE AS HE DEEMS FIT

THE CHAIRMAN WILL VOTE AS INDICATED IN THE HEREUNDER
RESOLUTIONS PANEL

PROXY FORM BY ELECTRONIC MEANS

VOTING PREFERENCES

To be completed when sending Proxy Form by electronic means

Name of Shareholder Sir James Brookes Holdings Pte Ltd
. 25

Signature of Shareholder ;’/

Telephone/Mobile Phone Number __+27 79 526 0928

E-mail address nic@inverson.co.za

A proxy form sent by electronic means is only valid upon confirmation by

the Company Secretary.
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ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS
VOTING PREFERENCES

FILL IN ONE OF THE FOLLOWING BOXES FOR | AGAINST | ABSTAIN
AUDITED ACCOUNTS X
APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS X
VOTING PREFERENCES
FOR | AGAINST | ABSTAIN

FILL IN ONE OF THE FOLLOWING BOXES

CONFIRMATION OF DIRECTORS’
FEES/EMOLUMENTS

X

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

In terms of Article 110, ‘An election of Directors shall
take place at every annual general meeting of the
Company. All Directors, except a Managing Director,
shall retire from office at least once every three (3)
years. The following Directors are eligible for re-

election:

FILL IN ONE OF THE FOLLOWING BOXES

FOR

AGAINST

ABSTAIN

MR. JEFIM GEWIET

X

DR. JOERG WERNER

X
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ANNEX B — PROXY FORM 2

Where a Member holds S8hares for and on behalf of third parties, such Member is entitled
to grant a proxy to each such third party or other persons designated by the third party, and
the instrument appointing the proxies shall, to permit votes attaching to Shares to be cast
differently than others, be in the following form-or in & form as near thereto as circumstances

permit:

FORM OF PROXY

VOTING PREFERENCES

As a Member holding Shares for and on behalf of third parties in Samara
Asset Group PLC (C 84355), | hereby appoint the duly appointed Chairman of
the AGM as my proxy to vote on my behalf, at the Annual General Mesting
(AGM) and at any adjournment thereof:

Date 22/06/2023 Name of Shareholder Malta Stock Exchange PLC As
Custodian Of Clearstream Banking AG - Customers' Account
Signature of Sharshoider

THE CHAIRMAN 1S AUTHORISED TO VOTE AS HE DEEMS FIT

THE CHAIRMAN WILL VOTE AS INDICATED IN THE HEREUNDER
RESCLUTIONS PANEL

n PRoxv FORM BY ELECTRONIC' MEANS

" VOTING PREFERENCES

To be completed when sending Proxy Form by electronic means
Name of Shareholder: Malta Stock Exchange PLC As Custodian Of
Clearstream Bahking AG - Customers' Account H
Signature of Shareholder .
Telephone/Mobile Phone Number : +35621244051

E-mail address: csdi@borzamalta.com.mt

A proxy form sent by electronic means is only valid upon confirmation

by the Company Secretary.
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ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS
VOTING PREFERENCES

FILL IN ONE OF THE FOLLOWING BOXES ¥ FOR | AGAINST | ABSTAIN

AUDITED ACCOUNTS

APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS X

VOTING PREFERENCES

0 0 DLLO B0 FOR | AGAINST | ABSTAIN

CONFIRMATION OF DIRECTORS’ FEES/EMOLUMENTS X

~_ ELECTION OF DIRECTORS =

‘Iectio iectors shaltae N
place at every annual general meeting of the Company. All
Directors, except a Managing Director, shall retire from
office at least once every three (3) years. The following
Directors are eligible for re-election:

FILL IN ONE OF THE F_OLI-__'OWI'NG-BOXES_ B FOR | AGAINST | ABSTAIN

MR. JEFIM GEWIET X

DR. JOERG WERNER X
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VL.

VII.

VIII.

XL

XIl.

ANNEX 2

Annual General Meeting (AGM)

AGENDA

Opening of the Meeting.

Calling the Meeting to Order.

Nomination and Appointment of a Chairman.

Mr. Jefim Gewiet (Director) will serve as Chairperson of the General Meeting. If Mr.
Gewiet is prevented from serving as the chairperson for a weighty reason, the Board

of Directors will appoint a person they deem most suitable to serve as the Chairperson.

Confirmation of Quorum (not less than 51% of the members holding an
equivalent paid-up voting share capital of the company).

Recording the Attendance at the Meeting and Adoption of the List of Votes.
Shareholders who have voted in advance within the advance voting period and who
are entitled to participate in the General Meeting will be deemed shareholders
participating in the meeting.

Election of one or two persons to verify the minutes.

During the Meeting, a person will be chosen to scrutinise the minutes.

Presentation of two sets of audited accounts (both audited and consolidated).

Ordinary Resolution: Receipt and approval of both the Audited Financial Statements
and the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of Cryptology Asset Group PLC
(Annual Report) of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the
Directors’ Report for the year ending 31%' December 2022 and the Auditors’ Report for
the year ending 31° December 2022.

Ordinary Resolution: To appoint the auditors of the Company and to authorise
the Board of Directors to fix their remuneration.

Election and composition of the new Board of Directors and Chairman of the
Board of Directors.

Any other matters arising.

Closing of the Meeting.
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By order of the Board of Directors.

Tuesday, June 6™ 2023.

—a

Dr. Michael Calleja
Company Secretary
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Company Announcement
NOTICE TO CONVENE SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC’S ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
(AGM) OF SHAREHOLDERS.
QUOTE
It is being announced (pursuant to Articles 164 and 165 of the Articles of Association) that the

Company Samara Asset Group PLC (C 84355) shall be holding its Annual General Meeting
(“AGM”), on Wednesday 28" of June 2023 at 17:00 hours (CET).

The Annual General Meeting shall be held ‘in person’ at the Registered Office of the Company,
this being 66/67, “Beatrice”, Amery Street, Sliema SLM 1707 Malta.

The following resolutions will be tabled for the consideration of the shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting (AGM):

Ordinary Resolutions — Ordinary Business

1. That the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31t
December 2022 and the directors’ and auditors’ report thereon as set out in the Annual
Report be and are hereby approved;

2. That the appointment of auditors of the Company for the next financial year 2023 be
hereby approved and that the directors be and are hereby authorised to determine
their remuneration (auditor’s fee);

Ordinary Resolutions — Special Business
Appointment of Directors.

3. The term of office of the directors, appointed pursuant to clause 112 of the Company’s
articles of association, currently in office shall expire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and the current directors will be subject to re-election accordingly. All directors
have expressed their willingness to be re-appointed in terms of the Company’s
Statutory Documents.

4. That the Directors’ fees for year 2023 be reconfirmed & remain unchanged
accordingly;

UNQUOTE

This notice is dated the 6" of June 2023
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By order of the Board of Directors.
Tuesday 6™ day of June 2023

sy

Dr. Michael Calleja
Company Secretary
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Guidance Notes & Ancillary Provisions.

A. Record Date

This notice has been mailed to the Members registered as at close of business on the 28" of
May 2023. Only such Members shall be entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General
Meeting.

B. Participation and voting by Members

A shareholder may participate and vote at the meeting in any of the following ways:

(a) by personally attending the meeting; or
(b) by submitting a proxy form to the company.

i) Personal Attendance

A Member may participate at the meeting personally by physically attending the
meeting on the appointed day and time at the venue where the meeting is held.

(See “Admission to Meeting”).

ii) Participation by Proxy

In terms of Clause 96 of the Articles of Association, a Member may participate by proxy by
completing and signing the proxy form dispatched to all Members together with this notice and
sending same to the Office of the Company Secretary not less than 24 hours before the time
appointed for the meeting.

A proxy form may be sent to the Company either:

(a) by mail to The Company Secretary; or
(b) by electronic means to: calleja@drwerner.com

In case of proxies sent by email to the email address above set out, the email should have
attached thereto a copy of the Proxy Form duly completed and signed by the shareholder
or a duly authorised person on behalf of a corporate/institutional Member.

C. Completing the Proxy Form

A Member wishing to participate at the meeting by proxy is to complete all details required on
the proxy form fully, clearly and accurately.

This includes:

a) Indicating whether the Member wishes to appoint as proxy the Chairman of the
meeting or another person. In the case that a member wishes to appoint a person
other than the Chairman of the meeting as proxy, the full name, address and I.D.
Card number of the proxy are to be clearly and legibly inserted in the appropriate
space;

3|Page



W =50

Seite 4/10

b)

Indicating whether the Member wishes the proxy to vote as the appointed proxy wishes
or whether the Member wishes to instruct the proxy how to vote. In either case a mark
ought to be made in the appropriate box indicated in the proxy form. In the event that
no indication is made it shall be deemed that the Member authorises the proxy to vote
as the proxy wishes, unless the Member indicates how he/ she wishes the shares held
to be voted by inserting the number of shares or another appropriate mark against the
relevant resolutions, in which case the proxy shall be deemed authorised to vote only
as indicated by the Member in the proxy form;

Where a Member wishes to have his/her proxy vote in a particular manner then he/she
should indicate his/ her voting preference appropriately against each resolution. The
procedure for voting is established and governed in terms of Clause G of this
Notice accordingly.

If a cross or a mark is placed in any two of the three boxes for the same resolution,
then the Member’s vote on that particular resolution will be invalid.

Any resolution remaining unmarked on the ballot paper will be treated as authorizing
the appointed proxy to vote as he/she wishes.

D. Participation and Voting

A Member wishing to participate simply by having their votes taken into account at the meeting

must

(ii)

(iif)

Fill in the proxy form in favour of the Chairman of the meeting

Concurrently submit proof of their number of shares held in the Dusseldorf Stock
Exchange to the Company Secretary and

proceed to instruct the Chairman how to vote on each resolution to be taken at the
meeting by completing the ‘FOR’, ‘AGAINST’ or ‘ABSTAIN’ boxes in the proxy
form.

E. Admission to the Meeting

a)

b)

c)

In order to be admitted, a Member is to present his Identity Card and the Admission
Form enclosed with this notice.

In the case of shares held jointly by several persons, except in the case of shares held
jointly by a married couple, the first named joint holder on the Register of Members
shall be eligible to attend and vote at the Meeting.

A single representative of a joint shareholding, who is not the first named on the

Register, will only be eligible to attend and vote at the Meeting if a Form of Proxy has
been duly executed in his favour by all other joint holders.
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d) In the case of shares held jointly by a married couple, both spouses, or either of them,
may attend the Meeting. Provided that: i. irrespective of whether both spouses, or
either of them, attend the Meeting, only one voting document will be issued and only
one of them shall be entitled to vote; and ii. if they wish to appoint a proxy, the Form
of Proxy must be signed and executed by both spouses.

e) When a Member is a body corporate, association of persons, foundation or other
collective entity, a representative thereof will only be eligible to attend and vote at the
Meeting if the Form of Proxy has been duly executed in his favour by the competent
organ of the entity which he represents.

f) Admission to the Meeting will be commenced 30 minutes before the advertised time.

g) After the Meeting has proceeded to business, voting documents will continue to be
issued until such time as the Meeting proceeds to vote on the first item of the Agenda
whether by show of hands or by poll. Thereafter no further voting documents will be
issued and admission to the Meeting shall be discontinued.

F. Draft Resolutions and Documents

The draft resolutions to be considered and voted upon at the meeting are included as an
integral part of this notice. The full unabridged text of any documents submitted to the meeting
shall, unless dispatched to shareholders, be available at the registered office of the Company
and on samara-ag.com.

G. Procedure for Voting during the AGM.

A. Voting by show of hands.

l. Chairman requests those voting in favour of the motion to raise a hand.

Il. Procedure is repeated for those voting against the motion.

M. A count is taken in each case and the Chairman will determine the outcome.
V. The result is recorded in the Minutes by the Company Secretary.

V. The counting of hands is necessary particularly when a specific resolution to pass
requires a specific majority proportion of the members present.
VI. A record is necessary to be kept in the Minutes and if decided by the Chairman, the

names of the members voting will also be kept on record.

B. Voting by Ballot/Poll.

Voting by ballot (or poll) may become necessary when there are members who hold a number
of proxies but have different voting-entitlements. Such an instance would call for correctness
in carrying out the method diligently.

. In such a scenario, the Company Secretary would have pre-prepared a voting
paper containing the salient but relevant details of the matter being voted on.
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Il. Such voting document is distributed to each of the members present that are
eligible to vote.

Il Company Secretary will keep a written record showing: the name of the person to
whom the voting document was distributed to and how many voting papers were
distributed to each person. This becomes relevant since one same person may
hold various proxies.

V. The voting document should request a voting member to insert a “FOR” or a
“AGAINST” or an ‘ABSTAIN’.

V. Should there be any votes that are doubtful, the Chairman will be the person to
determine and take a ruling.

H. Right to ask questions

Members (whether personally or by proxy) are reminded that they are entitled to ask questions
which are pertinent and related to any item on the agenda of the meeting — and to have such
questions answered by the directors or such person(s) as the directors may delegate for that
purpose.

To ensure efficient proceedings at the meeting the directors invite Members to submit in writing
any questions related to the resolutions to be sent to the Company Secretary either by mail to
the Company Secretary or email on calleja@drwerner.com by not later than 24 hours before
the meeting.

Whilst the directors shall endeavour to reply to all questions that may be raised at the meeting
only questions that shall have been submitted to them as aforesaid shall be entitled to a reply,
provided that any questions raised for the first time at the meeting and to which the directors
are not able to provide an immediate reply, shall, subsequent to the meeting be answered by
the directors by posting a reply on the Company’s website.

* % %
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ANNEX A - PROXY FORM 1
FORM OF PROXY

VOTING PREFERENCES

As a Shareholder of Samara Asset Group PLC (C 84355), | hereby appoint the
duly appointed Chairman of the AGM as my proxy to vote on my behalf, at the

Annual General Meeting (AGM) and at any adjournment thereof:

Date Name of Shareholder

Signature of Shareholder

THE CHAIRMAN IS AUTHORISED TO VOTE AS HE DEEMS FIT

THE CHAIRMAN WILL VOTE AS INDICATED IN THE HEREUNDER
RESOLUTIONS PANEL

PROXY FORM BY ELECTRONIC MEANS

VOTING PREFERENCES

To be completed when sending Proxy Form by electronic means

Name of Shareholder

Signature of Shareholder

Telephone/Mobile Phone Number

E-mail address

A proxy form sent by electronic means is only valid upon confirmation by

the Company Secretary.
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ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS
VOTING PREFERENCES

FILL IN ONE OF THE FOLLOWING BOXES

FOR

AGAINST | ABSTAIN

AUDITED ACCOUNTS

APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS

ORDINAY RESOLUTION

VOTING PREFERENCES

FILL IN ONE OF THE FOLLOWING BOXES

FOR

AGAINST

ABSTAIN

CONFIRMATION OF DIRECTORS’
FEES/EMOLUMENTS

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

In terms of Article 110, ‘An election of Directors shall
take place at every annual general meeting of the
Company. All Directors, except a Managing Director,
shall retire from office at least once every three (3)
years. The following Directors are eligible for re-

election:

FILL IN ONE OF THE FOLLOWING BOXES

FOR

AGAINST

ABSTAIN

MR. JEFIM GEWIET

DR. JOERG WERNER
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ANNEX B — PROXY FORM 2

Where a Member holds Shares for and on behalf of third parties, such Member is entitled
to grant a proxy to each such third party or other persons designated by the third party, and
the instrument appointing the proxies shall, to permit votes attaching to Shares to be cast
differently than others, be in the following form or in a form as near thereto as circumstances

permit;

FORM OF PROXY

VOTING PREFERENCES

As a Member holding Shares for and on behalf of third parties in Samara
Asset Group PLC (C 84355), | hereby appoint the duly appointed Chairman of
the AGM as my proxy to vote on my behalf, at the Annual General Meeting

(AGM) and at any adjournment thereof:

Date Name of Shareholder

Signature of Shareholder

THE CHAIRMAN IS AUTHORISED TO VOTE AS HE DEEMS FIT

THE CHAIRMAN WILL VOTE AS INDICATED IN THE HEREUNDER
RESOLUTIONS PANEL

PROXY FORM BY ELECTRONIC MEANS

VOTING PREFERENCES

To be completed when sending Proxy Form by electronic means
Name of Shareholder

Signature of Shareholder

Telephone/Mobile Phone Number

E-mail address

A proxy form sent by electronic means is only valid upon confirmation
by the Company Secretary.
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ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS
VOTING PREFERENCES
FILL IN ONE OF THE FOLLOWING BOXES
AUDITED ACCOUNTS

FOR

AGAINST

ABSTAIN

APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS

ORDINARY RESOLUTION

VOTING PREFERENCES

FILL IN ONE OF THE FOLLOWING BOXES
CONFIRMATION OF DIRECTORS’ FEES/EMOLUMENTS

FOR

AGAINST

ABSTAIN

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

In terms of Article 110, ‘An election of Directors shall take
place at every annual general meeting of the Company. All
Directors, except a Managing Director, shall retire from
office at least once every three (3) years. The following

Directors are eligible for re-election:

FILL IN ONE OF THE FOLLOWING BOXES

FOR | AGAINST

ABSTAIN

MR. JEFIM GEWIET

DR. JOERG WERNER
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SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
(formerly Cryptology Asset Group ple)

DIRECTORS' REPORT
The directors prasent their report for the year 31 December 2022,
Incorporation

Samara Assel Group plc was incorporated and registered with the Malta Business Registry on 10
January 2018 and started trading forthwith,

The shares of Samara Asset Group plc (ISIN MT0001770107) Ticker: CAP, (formerly 4UD) have
been Included in the primary market segment of the open market of the Disseldorf Stock
Exchange as of May 5, 2020 and are currently trading also on Gettex and Tradegate, with a
market valuation of € 2.51 at year end (2021: market value of € 8).

The listing on the primary market segment of the open market of the Dusseldorf Stock Exchange
has been undertaken, against the background of using the capital struclure as a source of
financing in the future as part of the growth strategy.

Principal Activity

The principal activity of the company is to, a lesser degree, invest in digital assets and mainly
mvest in companies with blockchain-related business models and, also, provide strategic advice
o these types of companies. During the year under review, it invested in companies with
underlying digital assets.

Investment Rationale

As at year end the Company held a porifolio of investrments thal experienced a negative impact
on both quoted and unguoted investments, This contributed significantly to the performance of
the Company's financial results for the year under review. The Company adheres to a clearly
defined Investment policy which ensures transparency, consistency and a fair basis of valuing
financial instruments. In this regard, for unquoted investments, in view of limited information
available, the Company's measurement of fair value would be the price that the financial assat
can be expected lo sell in the ordinary course of business, as long as the price indicated is
supparted by sound financial judgement. To this end, the Company obtains sufficient information
o measure fairly the value of its investments from observable and uncbservable inputs under
normal markel conditions. In relation to quoted investments, these are valued on the basis of
open markel information available at year end.

The Company's Advisory Board is composed of key personnel well rained and experienced in
the field. The Advisory Board seeks lo idenlify, evaluate and select ongoing viable projects that
are likely to have significant positive impacl on the Company’s resulls.

The Company is uniquely positioned to invest further in its existing portfolios. It also looks at
other innovative investment opportunities, which could include co-investing with other partners in
viable projects such as cryplo-asset management.

The global macro-economic scenario has surely affected the Company's investments strategic
approach, particularly the current trends in the financial and digital assets' market. The Company
intends 1o act prudently when it comas to considering new investimants.



SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
(formerly Cryptology Asset Group plc)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (Continued)

Business Development and Dutlook

The Company has developed very positively since its foundation where the cryptocurrencies
showed a significant increase. However, al time of reporiing, the crypte market has seen a
substantial dip with pricas plummeting more than 55% from its closing of the previous financial
yaar. With regards to traditional investments, the market is also experiencing price-bruising
mainly caused by the macro-economic outlook, both geopolitical and economically, where
Central Banks have increased interast rates and inflation is currently eroding purchasing power.
It is expected that markets will stay turbulent till early Quarter 2 of 2023.

According to latest eurozone analysis, the economic data provides further fears of a deep
recessicn. This suggests a broadened slowdown in most of the economies, particularly in French
and German economies. The economic oullook and economic indicators looked pessimistic in
Quarter 3 and Quarter 4 of 2022 with the negative sentiment cascading onto Quarter 1 of 2023.

We are seeing some improvements, but the rising interest rates will continue to weigh on the
sentimant.

Notwithstanding all the above, the Company is confident the market will see a positive change
towards mid-2023, and is poised to pardicipate slowly but securely in upcoming investment
ocpporiunities,

The Company will expand its existing stake with suitable companies if management believes that
these companies complement to the existing holdings In a meaningful way, and thereby the
sirategy of the Company is fo continue to build a diversified portfolio of companies with
blockchain-based business models.

It is the Company's intention to be a key player in the industry by hamessing the experience to
mitigate risks and avoid volatility scenarios mainly by seeking and harvesting new investment
opporiunities by investing in hi-tech companies. To this end, the Company, will continue to invest
in key human resource talents to enhance its corporate governance and to assist it in the
venilures which it intends to pursue. The Board of Direclors seeks to consistently improve
business results and sustain continuous growth in the market in which it oparates, and in line with

its invesiment strategies.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Company's principal risks and uncertainties ara further disclosed in Notes 21 and 22 and
specific risk evaluation to Fair Value Measurement as denoted in Mote 23 to the financial
statements.

Events subsequent to year end

Disclosures in relation to subsequent events are set out in Note 24 to the financial statements.



SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
(fermerly Cryptology Asset Group plc)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (Continued)
Risks posed by COVID-1% and other economic factors

The continuance of the coronavirus (COVID-19) across the whole world did not impact on the
Company's financial position or on the day-lo-day activities. The Company did not experience
any financial recession, on the contrary, the financial arana was very active and promising.

Eventually, by end of Quarter 1 of 2022, all COVID-19 restrictions on the international arena were
lifted and business resumad as normal. Liquidity required for new investments was adequately
tapped and the Company’s aclivities were never hindered.

Results

The directors report a loss for the year after taxation of € 4,380,345 (2021: loss (restated) of
€ 1,884,429) and total comprehensive loss of € 208,794,147 (2021: total comprehensive incoma
of € 45022139). These losses will be deducted from profits brought forward leaving
accumulated profits of € 44,500,502 to be camied forward to next year, afler reflecting the
deduction from treasury stock amounting to € 3,616,691 (2021: addition of € 1,637,632).

Performance Review

Initially, the Company's objective was o invest in major investments in USA and Germany.
Dwring the past five years, it invested in companies that have yielded positive results. During the
year under review the Company's profitability has emanated primarily from the sale of
Investments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) and from ‘carry’
arangements for assets held under management for third parties. |n addition to the operating
profits generated during the year, the Company registered a negative contribution to Total
Comprehensive Income derived from fair values changes on thesa investments for both “quoted’
and 'unguoted’ investments.

During the year under review, the Company raised additional funds of €5.1 Million through a
Securities Loan Agreement where it sold 'guoted’ securities with a simultaneous condition and
obligation to repurchase equivalent securities at the repurchase closing date of 15" September
2024. Further funds raised during the year emanated from share repurchase exercise by
investeas.

On 30" May 2022, an Extra-ordinary General Meeting was held whera the shareholders
approved a treasury buyback with trading commencing in July 2022,

Dividends

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

Financial Reporting Framework

The directors have resolved to prepare the Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022 in accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting

Standards (IFRS), as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and as
adopted by the European Union.



SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
(formerly Cryptology Asset Group plc)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (Continued)

Directors
The following have served as directors of the company during the year under review:

Mr. Jefim Gewial: Director acting as Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Patrick Lowry: Director acing as Chief Operations Officer
Dr. Jorg Wemer: MNon-Executive Diractor

In accordance with the Aricles of Association, all the directors shall retire from office at least
once every three years,

Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The Companies Acl, 1995 requires the directors o prepare financial stalements for each financial
year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company as at the end of the
financial year and of the financial perfformance of the company for that year. In preparing those
financial statements, the directors are required to:

select suitable accounting policias and then apply them consistently;
= make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

- ensure that the financial statements have been drawn up in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards, as adopted by the European Union;

- account for income and expenditure relating to the accounling peried on an accruals
basis,

- ensure that the financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis unless It is
inappropriate to presume that the company will continue in business as a going concerm.

The directors are also responsible for designing, implementing and maintaining internal control
as the diractors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements thal are
free from material misstatement, whather due to frawd or eror, The direclors are also
responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any time the financial position of the company and to enable them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Companies Act, 1995.

They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other iregularities. The directors confirm
that, to the bast of their knowladge:

- the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the company
at 31 December 2022 and of its financial performance and its cashflows for the year then
anded, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU on the basis explained in Note 1
to the financial statements; and

- the Annual Report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the
business and the position of the Company together with additional information of the
principal risks and uncertainties that the Company faces.
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SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
(formerly Cryptology Asset Group plc)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (Continued)

Auditors

Grant Thoeton had intimated their willingness to engage with the Group acting as statutory
auditors of both the holding company — Samara Assel Group ple (formerly Cryplology Assst
Group plc) and its subsidiary — Samara Advisory Limited (formerly Cryptology Advisory Limited).

A resolution for their reappointment will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Mesting.

BY ORDER OF THE EOARD

s [

Mr. Jefim Gewiet
Director

Registerad Office:
‘Beatrice’. 66 & 67,
Amery Streat,
Sliema, SLM 1707
Malta

28 June 2023



SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
(formerly Cryptology Asset Group plc)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2022

REVEMUE
Cost of investments

Fair vzalue movemeanis on investments at Fair
Walue through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

GROSS OPERATING LOSS
Dividends receivable
Impaimment loss on intangible assets

TOTAL OPERATING LOSS
Adminisiralive expansas
Other income

LOSS ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE
FINANCE INCOME! (COSTS)
Finance incomel (cosis)

LOSS FOR THE YEAR BEFORE TAXATION
Taxation

LOSS FOR THE YEAR AFTER TAXATION

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/ INCOME

Assets that will not be taken to profit or loss:

Cuoted investments al Fair Value through Other
Comprahansive Income (FVOCI): changes in fair
value
Unguoted investmenis at FVOCI: changes in fair
value

Foreign exchange translations on investments at
FvOCI

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME

The notes form an integral part of these financial statemeants,

L]

Motes

tn

13

13

13

2021

2022 (re-stated)

€ €

- 13,099, 445

= (11,265,227)

- (2,141,882)

- (307 B64)

- 337,817

= (817.926)

- (Tar. 773

(5.059,091) (1,598,904)
o669 557 886,103
(4,389,534) (1,500.574)
9,189 {1,204,237)
(4,380,345) (2,704,811)

- 820,382

(4,380,345) (1.884,429)
(158,500,475} (30,280,033)
(46,391.856) 73,796,774
478,529 3,389,827
(204,413 802) 46,904 568
€ (208,794,147) € 45,022,139




SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
(formerly Cryptology Asset Group plc)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
At 31 December 2022

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Intangible assets

Froperty, plant and equipment
Invesiment in subsidiaries
Invastments at FVOCI

Trade and other receivables

Dther non-currant assets
Defarrad tax assal

Current Assets

Other assets

Trade and other receivables
iCash and cash equivalents

TOTAL ASSETS

The notes form an integral par of the financial statemeants.

Moles

10
12
13
15

11

14
15

2021

2022 (re-staled)

€ €

T.857 6,638
200,240 240
171,009, 270 406,613,559
931,766 1,224,052
172,239,233 407,844 489
1,190,076 1,190,076
8,542 8,542
4,301,345 3.254.,091
432954 1,353,430
4,742,841 4,616,063

€ 178,172,150 € 413,650,628




SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
iformerly Cryptology Asset Group plc)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
At 31 Dacembar 2022

2021
2022 (re-stated)
Motes € €
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 16 (a) 2.B60 875 2,860,875
Share premium 16 (b) 54,053,895 54,053,895
Treasury stock 18 (c) (81,118) .
Fair value reserve 16 {d) 71,520,675 257,646 079
Retained eamings 16 (&) 44,500,592 70,786,026
172,854,919 385,346,875
Non-Current Liability
Interest-bearing loans 17 4,404 899 2,012,505
Current Liabilities
Trade and octher payables 18 812,332 26,291 248
Total liabilites 5,317,231 28,303,753
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES €178,172150 € 413,650,628

The notes form an integral part of the financial statements. These Financial Statemenis on pages 6 to

45 were approved by the directors on 28 June 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

A (T

Mr. Jefim Gewiet

=7
Mr. Pat
Director Dire
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SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
(formerly Cryptology Asset Group plc)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2022

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from/ (used in) operations
Interest paid

Interest recehed

Taxation paid

NET CASH FROM/ (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of plant and equipment

Furchasza of intangible asseats

Purchase of subsidiary

Met proceeds from disposal of investments at FVOCI
Purchase of investments at FVOCI

Convertible loan advances/ repayments

NET CASH FROM/ (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Iszue of share capital

Issue of share premium

Fepurchase of own shares

Bank loan advances

Loan advances from third party

Repaymenl of third party loans

Loan advances to related parly

MNET CASH (USED IN)/ FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Met movement in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at tha beginning of year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

The notes form an integral part of these financial statemants,
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Motes

19 (a)

19 (b)

18 (b)

2021
2022 (re-stated)

€ £

497,478  (1,570,987)
(165,269) (459,505)
660,557 582,608

- (118,236)

1,001,766  (1,566,122)
(8,503) -

: (817,9286)

(200,000) 3
15,256,560 35,308,316
(4,764.862) (56.438,669)
(3,358.833)  (1,079,127)
6,024,262 (23.027,406)
- 160,000

- 31,840,000
(3,697,.809) (10,720)
2,892,304 522,490
- 600,000

(600,000) (5,450,860
(2,246,267) :
(3,551,682) 26,660,910
4,374,346 2,067,382
(4,639,504)  (6.706,888)
€ (265,158) € (4,639,504)




SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
(formerly Cryptology Asset Group plc)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 Decamber 2022

1. COMPANY INFORMATION AND BASIS FOR PREPARATION

1.1 Company Information

Samara Asset Group ple (formerly Cryptology Asset Group plc), the 'Company’, was incorporated
and registered with the Malta Business Registry on 10 January 2018 and started trading fortwith.
The Company’s registered office address and principal place of business is located at Bealrice, 66
& B7, Amery Street, Sliema, SLM 1707, Malta. The Company’s principal activity company is to, a
lesser degree, invest in digital assets and mainly invest in companies with blockchain-related
business models and, also, provide strategic advice o these types of companies.

1.2 Statement of Compliance

The financial statements of Samara Asset Group plc (formerly Cryptology Assel Group ple) have
been prepared in accordance with the requiremants of International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS), as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and as adopted by the
European Union.

These financial statements have also been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1995 (Chapler 386, Laws of Malta).

1.2 Basis of accounting

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost. Assets and liabllities are measurad
at historical cost except for the following that are measured al fair value: financial assets measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVYTOCH), and financial assets classified at fair
value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

These Financial Statements are prepared on a going concern basis. The Directors regard this as
appropriate, after due consideration of the company's statement of financial position, capital
adequacy and solvency.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
24 Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards

The new and revised standards that became effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022 made several minor amendments to a number of IFRSs. None of the changes to
IFRSs and interpretations has had, or is expected to have, a material impact on the Company's
financial statemanis.

2.1.1 New and amended standards adopted by the Company

Information on new standards, amendmenis and interpretations that are relevant to the Company's
financial statements is provided below. Certain other new standards and interpretations not listed
below have been issued but are not relevant and therefore are not expectad to have any impact on
the Company’s flinancial statements.
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SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
(formerly Cryptology Asset Group plc)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards (continued)

The Company started to adopt the new accounting prenouncements which have become effective
this year, and are as follows:

Onerous Confract — Cost of Fulfiing a Contract (Amendments fo 1AS 37)

This pronouncement amended IFRS 37 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’
and clarifies that when assessing if a contract is onerous, the cost of fulfilling it includes all costs
related direcily to the contract. Such cosis include both:

= the incremeantal cosls of the contract (i.e. costs a company would avoid if it did not have
the contract, like direct labor and materials); and

« an allocation of other costs that relate direclly to fulfilling the contract (e.p. contract
management and supervision, or depreciation of equipment used in fulfilling it).

Proceeds before Infended Use (Amendmaenis fo 1AS 16)

The amendments introduce new guidance to |AS16 ‘Property, Plant and Equipment, which
prohibit entities from deducting from the costs of PPE amounts received from selling items
produced while the entity is preparing the asset for its inlended use. Instead, the entity will
recognize such sales proceeds and related costs in profit and loss.

These amendmenis do not have a significant impact on these financial slatements and therefore
the disclosuras have not baen made.

2.1.2 New Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that
are not yet effective

Al the date of authorization of these financial statements, several new, but not yet effective,
Standards and amendments to existing Standards, and Interpretations have been published by the
1ASE. None of these standards or amendments to existing standards have been adopted early by
tha Company. These are the following:

COn 23 January 2020, the IASE issued "Classification of Liabilites as Current or Non-Current
(Amendments to |1AS 1) providing a more general approach to the classification of labilities under
IAS 1 based on the contractual arrangements in place of the reporting date. The amendmenis are
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022,

On 23 January 2020, the IASB issued 'Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current
(Amendments to 1AS 1) providing a more general approach to the classification of liabilities under
lAS 1 based on the contractual arrangemants in place of the reporling date. The amendments are
affective for annual reporting periods baginning on or after 1 January 2024,
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SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
(formerly Cryptology Asset Group plc)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards (continued)

2.1.2 New Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that
are not yet effective (continued)

On 18 May 2017, the |ASB issued IFRS 17 ‘Insurance Contracts' that require insurance liabilities
to be measured at a current fulfilment value and provides a more unfirm measurement and
prasentation approach for all insurance contacts. These requirements are designad 1o achieve the
goal of 8 consistent, principle-based accounting for insurance confracts. IFRS 17 supersedes
IFRS 4 as is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after from 1 January 2023,

The directors are assessing the impact that tha adoption of thase Inlernational Financial Reporting
Standards will have on the financial statements in the period of initial application. None of these
Standards or amendments to existing Standards have been adopted early by the Company.

The directors anticipates that all relevant pronouncements will be adopted for the first period
beginning on or after the affective date of the pronouncement. New Standards, amendments and
Interpratations notl adopted in the current year have not been disclosed as they are not expectad to
have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

2.2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND REPORTING PROCEDURES

The principal accounting policies applied in the praparation of thesea financial statemenis are set
out below. Thesa policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.21 Non-derivative financial instruments

MNon-derivative financial instruments comprise in equity and debt securties, frade and ofher
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, loans and borrowings, and trade and other payables.
MNon-derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value. Subsequent to initial
recognition non-derivative financial instruments are measured as described below.

A financial instrument is recognised if the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Financial assets are derecognised if the Company's contractual rights to the
cash flows from the financial assels expire or if the Company transfers the financial asset to
another party without retaining control of substantially all risks and rewards of the asset. Regular
way purchases and sales of financial assets are accounted for at trade date, i.e., the date that the
Company commits itself to purchase or sell the asset.
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SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
(formerly Cryptology Asset Group ple)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Far the year ended 31 December 2022

2.2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND REPORTING PROCEDURES (continued)
2.2.1 Non-derivative financial instruments {continued)

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active markel. After initial recognition, thase are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. Discounting is omitted when the
effect of discounting is immaterial, or when the interest rate attached to the instrument exceeds the
Company's incremental borrowing rate. The Company’s cash and cash equivalents, trade and
most other receivables fall into this category of financial instruments. Individually significant
receivables are considered for impairment when they are past due or when other objective
evidence is received that a specific counterparty will defaull. Recaivables thal are not considerad
to be individually impaired are reviewed for impairment in groups, which are determined by
reference o the industry and region of a counterparty and other available features or shared credit
risk characteristics.

The percentage of the write down value is then based on recent historical counterparty default
rates for each identified group.  Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured initially at
fair value plus transaction costs, except for financial assets and financial liabilties carried at fair
value through profit and loss, which are measured initially at fair valua, They are subsequently
measured as described below. Financial liabilities are derecognised if the Company's obligations
specified in the contract expire or are discharged or cancelled.

2.2.2 Debt instruments

Debt instruments are those instruments that meet the definition of a financial lability from the
issuer's perspective, such as loans, government and corporate bonds. Classification and
subsequent measurement of debt instruments depend on:

i. The Company's businass moded for managing the asset; and
ii. The cash flow characteristics of the assel.

Based on these faclors, the Company classifies its debt instruments into one of the following three
measurement criteria:

« Amortised cost: Assets thal are held for collection of contractual cash flows where thosa
cash flow represent solely payments of principal and inlerast on specifiad dates, Inlerest
income from thesa financial assets is included in ‘Interest and similar income” using the
effective interest rate method.

¢« [Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI): Financial assets that are held
for collecting of contractual cash flows and for selling the assets, where the assels' cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest and thal are not designated at
FVTPL, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through
OCl. Foreign exchange gains and losses on the instrument's amortised cost are also
recognised in OCI. No impairment gains or losses are recognisad since these are raflected
in the movement in fair value through OCIL. When the financial assel is derecognized, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is kept in OCI.. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in 'Interest and similar income’ using the effective interest
rate method.
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SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
iformerly Cryptology Asset Group plc)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2.2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AMD REPORTING PROCEDURES (continued)
2.2.2 Debt instruments (continued)

« Fair Value through Profit or loss (FVTPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVTOC! are measured at FYTPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVTPL is recognized in profit or loss. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in ‘Interest and similar income’ using the effective interest
rate method.

2.2.3 Equity instruments

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of equity from the issuer's perspective;
that is instruments that do not contain a contractual obligation to pay and that evidence a residual
interast in the issuer's net asseats.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the company may
irecoverably elect to present changes in fair value in OCl. This election s made on a investmeant-
by-investment basis and is imecoverable. Other equity instruments are classified as measured at
FVTPL. Gains and losses on such equity instruments are never reclassified to profit and loss and
no impairment is recognized.

Dividends are recognized in profit or loss unless they clearly represent a recovery of part of the
cost of the invesiment, in which case they are recognized in OCl. Cumulative gains and losses
recognized in OCI are kept within OCI on dispozal of an investrment.

Gains and losses on equily investments held for trading are shown at FVTPL and are included in
the Trading profits’ im line with the statement of comprehensive income.

The company classifies its equity instruments as follows:

I. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: This classification includes financial
assets classified as Investment al FVTPL. Financial assets at FVTPL are initially
recognized and subsequently measured at fair value based on quoted bid prices in an
active market.

i. Financial assets at fair value through QOCI Investment securties are classified as
investments at FVOCI in view of the fact that these are intended to be held for an indefinite
period of time, but which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in
interest rates, exchange rates or market pricas. All investment securities are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs, if any, that were directly attributable to their
acquisition.

Those investments securities classified as available-for-sale financial assets are subseguently
measured al fair value bazed on gquoled bid prices in an active market, or be reference to a
valuation technique if the markat was nol active. Shares held as investments are classified as
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SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
(formerly Cryptology Asset Group plc)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2.2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND REPORTING PROCEDURES (continued)

2.2.3 Equity instruments [continued)

‘Investments at FVOCI and these are valued at acquisition cost excluding any other ancillary
costs. All shareholding listings in each respective investees is below the 20% holding.

2.2.4 Convertible instruments

Convertible mstruments, which give the holder the right to either demand repayment of the
principle amount or to write off the debt and instead convert the balance into shares, are split up
recognising both the liability and the equity components. The liability component is worked out on
the basis of the present value of the paymentis at the market rate of interest. Once the liability
companant has been calculated, the equity component represents the difference between the cash
paid and the liability componant.  This scenario applies when tha market rate of interest will be
higher than the coupon rate.

2.2.5 Investment in subsidiaries and equity-accounted investees

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Company. Control is the power to govern the
financial & operaling policies of an entity 1o obtain banafits from its activities. Investments in
subsidiaries and equity-accounted investees are initially include in the Company's statement of
financial position at cost and subsequently at cost less any impairment loss which may have
arsen.

Interest in equity-accounted investees are accounted for using the equity method at Group Level.
These are initially recognized at cost, which includes transaction costs.

Subsequently the consolidated financial statements include the Group's share of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of equily-accounted investees, unlil the date on which
significant influence ceases. Dividends from the investments are recognised in profit or loss when
its right to receive the dividend is established.

Al the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the cammying amount of its investments
in subsidiaries and equity-accounted investees to determine wheather thare is any indication of
impairment, and if such indication exists, tha recoverable amount of the asset is estimated, and an
impairmant loss iz accounted for as explained below.

2.2.6 Property, plant and equipment
Propery., plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any

accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is provided for on the straight-line method at rates
intended to write of the cost to its residual value over the expected useful life,
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SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
(formerly Cryptology Asset Group plc)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2.2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND REPORTING PROCEDURES (continued)
2.2.6 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The annual rates used are as follows:
%

Computer and other office equipment 25
Computer software 25

Deprecialion begins when the assel is available for use and continues until the asset is
derecognised. Depreciation charge is recognised within ‘administrative expenses’ in the statemeant
of comprahanshve income.

Gains and losses on disposal of properly, plant and equipment are determined by reference to
their carrying amount and are taken into account in determining operating profit. The residual
values and useful lives of the assets are reviewed and adjusted as appropriate, at each financial
reporting date. The carrying amount of an asset is written down immediately o its recoverable
amount if the camying amount of the asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Zubsequent costs are included in the carmying amount of the assel or recognised as a separate
assel, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic banefils associated with the
itam will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured refiably.  All other repairs
and maintenance are charged io the statement of comprehensive income during the financial year
in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment that are temporarily idie and in course of construction are
recognized in the carryving amount of property, plant and equipment at cost within ‘Assets under
construction’,

2.2.7 Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assels are carried al cost less accumulated amorisation and any
accumulated impairment losses in accordance with 1AS 38. Intemally generated intangible assets,
excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expendilure iz reflected in profit
and less in the vear in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful life of intangible assets is assessed to be either finite or infinite. The Company's
intangible assets consist of digital assets, which are held for the Company's own account. No
amortisation is being provided to write of the cosl to its residual value, since the assals do not
have a definite usaful life.

The digital assets were classified as intangible assets under IAS 38, 'Intangible Assets’, because;

= it is a resource controlled by an entity (that is, the entity has the power to obtain the
sconomic banefits that the asset will generate and to restrict the access of others to those
benefits) as a result of past evenis and from which future economic benefits are expected
to flow to the antity;
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SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
(formerly Cryptology Asset Group ple)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2,2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND REPORTING PROCEDURES (continued)

2.2.7 Intangible assets (continued)
= it i5 identifiable, because it can be sold, exchanged or transferred individually;
- il is not cash or a non-monetary assel; and

- it has no physical form.

Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the intangible assel is assessed
and written down immediately to its recoverable amount.

For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped in the lowest levels for which there
are largely independent cash inflows (cash-generating units). As a resull, some assets are tested
individually for impairment and some are tested at cash-generating unit level. All individual assets
or cash-generating units are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carmying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the greater of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. To determine the value
in use, management estimates expected future cashflows from each cash-generating unit and
determines a sultable discounting rate in order lo calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Discount factors are determined individually for each cash-generating umit and reflect their
respective risk profiles as assessed by management. Impairment losses are recognised
immediately in the income statement. Impairments losses for cash-generating units are charged
pro rata to the assets in the cash-generating unit. All assets are subsequently reassessed for
indications that an impairment loss previously recognised may no longer exist.

An impairment loss that had been previously recognised is reversed if the cash-generating unit's
recoverable amount exceeds ifs carmying amount. An impairment loss s reversed only 1o the
extent that the asset's carying amount does not excead the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amorization, if no impairment loss had been previously
recognised,

2.2.8 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when present obligations resulting from a past event will probably lead
to an outflow of economic resources from the company and amounts can be estimated reliably.
Timing or amount of the outflow may still be uncertain, A present obligation arises from the
presence of a legal or constructive commitment that has resufled from past events, for example,
product warranties granted, legal disputes or onerous contracts. Restrucluring provisions are
recognised only if a detailed formal plan for the restructuring has been developed and
implemented, or management has at least announced the plan's main fealures o those affected
by it. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.
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SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
(formerly Cryptclogy Asset Group plc)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 Dacember 2022

2.2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND REFORTING PROCEDURES (continued)

2.2.8 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets (continued)

Frovisions are measured at the estimaled expenditure required to seiile the present obligation,
based on the most reliable evidence available at the reporting date, including the risks and
uncertainties associated with the present obligation. Where there are numerous similar
obligations, the likefihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is delermined by
considering the obligations’ class of obligations as a whole. Provisions are discounted (o their
present values, whera the time value of money is matarial. All provisions are reviewed at each
reporting date and adjusted to refiect the current best estimate.

A contingent liability s (a) a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or naon-occurrence of one or more uncertain fulure events
not wholly within the control of the entity; or (b) a present obligation that arises from past events
but is nmot recognized because: (i) it is not probable that an outfiow of resources embodying
aconomic benafits will be required to settle the obligation; or (i) the amount of the obligation
cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. Contingant liabilities are nol recognized but are
disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remaote,

A confingent assel is a possible asset that arizes from past events and whose existence will ba
confirmed only by lhe occurrence or non-occurmance of one or mone uncertain fulure avanis not
whaolly within the control of the entity. Contingent assets are not recognized. Contingent assets are
disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

2.2.9 Cash and Cash Equivalents

ash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-lerm
highhy liquid investments with original maturities of three months.

2.2.10 Related Undertakings and Related Parties

The term ‘related undertakings’ refers to companies having common shareholders or common
ultimate shareholders. A party is related to an entity if, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, the party controls or In under common control with the entity, or has an interest in
the entity which can give significant influence on control over the entity.

2.2.11 Bank and Other Borrowings

Bank and other borrowings are recorded at the proceeds received. Finance charges are accounted
for on an accrual basis and are shown with accruals lo the extent that they are not settled in the
period in which they arisa,

2,212 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an assel or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction betwean market paricipants at the measuremant date in the principal or, ils
absence, the most advantageous market o which the Company has access at the date. The fair
value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.
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SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
(formerly Cryptology Asset Group plc)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2.2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND REPORTING PROCEDURES (continued)
2.2.12 Fair value measurement {continued)

Fair valua conditions, induding bul not limited to liquidity in the market, al a specific date may and
therefore differ significantly from the amounts which will actually be received on the maturity or
seltlement date. The best evidence of fair value of an instrument is a quoted price in an activaly
tfraded market for thal instrument. The determination of whal constitutes an active marked is
subjective and requiras the collation of data and the exercise of judgement. A financial instrumsant
is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency, and those prices represent
aclual and regularly occurning market transactions on an arm's length basis.

Where it iz concluded that an aclive market does not exist, a valuation technique is used. The
latter gives consideration of transaction prices in inactive markets, however It makes use of other
obsarvable market data. The main assumptions and estimates which management considers
when using valuation technigues are the likelihood and expected timing of future cash flows on the
instrument and a risk premium. The valuation techniques used by the Company Incorporale all
factors that market participants would consider in setling a price and are consistent with accepted
methodologies for pricing financial instruments.

The major application of fair value measurement is adopted for the valuation of Investments at
FVOCI disclosed in the financial statements under Non-Current Assets, In the absence of Lewvel 1
and Level 2 inputs, the directors have applied Level 3 inputs to value these assets. Observable
and unobservable inputs are used in this case, since there is little market activity for the assel at
measurament date. The directors developed these inpuls using the best information available in
the circumstances, including the Company's own data, taking into consideration all information
about market paricipanis assumplions that is reasonable available. A combination of valuation
techniques were adapled taking into account the current replacement value of the assel and
available, unaudited financial data of the underlying assels.

2213 Income laxes

Income lax expense comprses cunent and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the
income statement except to the extent that the fax arises from a tramsaction or event which is
recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity. Current (ax s based on the
taxable profit for the year, as determined in accordance with tax laws, and measured using tax
rates, which have been enacted or substantively enacied by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method in respect of teamporary differences arising
from differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and the comesponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferrad tax is not
racagnised for the following temporary differences: the initial recognition of assets or kabilities in a
transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss.



SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
(formerly Cryptology Asset Group plc)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 Dacember 2022

2.2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND REPORTING PROCEDURES ([continued)
2.2.13 Income taxes (continued)

Differences relating to the invesiment in subsidiary to the extent that the Company’'s ability to
control the timing of the reversal of temporary differences and it is probable that those temporary
differences will not reverse in the foresesable future.

Deferred tax assats for the carry-forward of unused tax losses are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax losses can be
utifised. Deferred tax is measurad at the tax rates that are axpecled to apply to the period when
the assel is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

2.2.14 Revenue recognition

Fevenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or recetvable for services
rendered in the normal course of business, net of value added tax. Revenue is recognized to the
extent that it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity and these can be
measured reliably. A contract with a customer that results in the recognised financial instrument in
the company's financial statements may be partially in the scope of IFRS 9 and partially in the
scopa of IFRS 15. If this is the case, the company first applies IFRS 9 to separate and measure
the part of the contract that is within the scope of IFRS 9 and then applies IFRS 15 to the residual.

Dividend income from investments is racognisad whan the right o recaive payment is established,

Interest income and expense is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and the effective interest rate applicable, which ks the rate that exactly discounis estimated future
cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the instrument, or when appropriate, a
shorler perod to that instrument’s carrying amount. When calculating the effective interast rate,
the company estimates cash flows considering al contractual terms of the instrument but ot
future credit losses. The calculation includes payments or receipts that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other discounts or premiums.

Generally fee and commission income, is recognised as he relaled sarvices ara parfarmed. Other
fee and commission expanses are expensed as the sarvices are renderad.

2.2.15 Administrative expenses

Operaling expenses are recognised in the profit or loss and other statement of comprahansive
income wpon utilization of the service or at the date of thair origin.

2.216 Finance costs
Finance expenses comprise interest on borrowings, unwinding of the discount on provisions and

impairment losses recognised on financial assels. All bormowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss using the effective interest method.
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SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
(formerly Cryptology Asset Group ple)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the vear ended 31 December 2022

2.2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND REPORTING PROCEDURES (continued)
2,216 Finance costs (continued)
Barrowing cosls

Borrowing cosls include interest on bank overdrafis and borrowings and finance charges on
finance leases, Borrowing costs and finance charges directly atfributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substaniial period aof
time to get ready for their intended use or sale is capitalised as part of the cost of thase assels,
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. The amount of
borrowing costs efigible for capitalisation is the actual borrowing costs incurred on that borrowing
during the period less any investment income on the temporary investment of that borrowing. Al
other borrowing costs are racognised as an expense in the profit or loss in the peried in which they
are incurred.

2.217 Surplus and deficits

Only surpluses that were realised at the date of the Statement of Financial Position are recognised
in thesa Financial Statements. All foressaable labilities and potential deficits ansing up to the said
dale are accounted for even if they become apparent between the said date and the date on which
the Financial Statements are approved.

2.2.18 Treasury Stock

The Company is allowed to repurchase common stock anytime that it is belleved o be beneficial to
the company and its shareholders. The program continues 1o allow share repurchase in the open
market,

The company can either retire the repurchased stocks or keep them as Treasury slock available
for reissuance. When sold thesa will ba reflected as a credit for any additional cash surplus in

equity.,

Upon issuance of the treasury stock, adjustments will be reflected against Share premium account
to neutralize the effect on retained earnings, to the extent originally debited, which would have
resulted from the onginal acquisition of the treasury stock.

2.2.19 Foreign currency translation

items included in the Financial Statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environmen! in which the Company operates., These Financial Statements are
presented in Euro, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency. Assets and
liabilities in foreign currencies are franslated inte Euro at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance
sheet date. Transactions in foreign currency during the period are franslated into Euro at the rate
of exchange ruling on the date of the transaction. All profits and losses on exchange are dealt with
through the profit and loss account.



SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
(formerly Cryptology Asset Group ple)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the vear ended 31 December 2022

2.2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND REPORTING PROCEDURES (continued)
2.2.20 Capital management policies and procedures

The Company's capital consists of its net assels, including working capital, presented by is
retained funds. The company's capital managemeant objectives are (o ensure its ability 1o continue
a5 a going concern, to maintains a positive working capital ratio, and (o provide an adaquate refurmn
to shareholders. The Company uses budgels and business plans to sel its strategy to oplimise its
use of availlable funds and implement its commitments to its primary stakeholders.

2.2.21 Significant judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that effect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilties, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed (o be reasonable
and reliable in the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making tha judgements
about carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewead
on an ongoing basis. Revisions o accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which
estimates is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of revision and future
pericds if the revision affects both current and future periods. The main assumptions and
astimates are made in estimating the fair value of availlable-for-sale financial instruments not
quoted in active markets. Management is required to make certain assumptions and estimates in
arriving al an appropriate fair value, based on the application of valuation techniques that make
use of avaitable observable market data. A change in assumptions and estimates could affect the
raporied fair valua of thasa financial instruments,

3. REVENUE

2022 2021
€ €

Revenue comprises the following:
Sale of investments at FVTPL - 2,778,797
Sale of digital assais - 7,972,073
Exercise of exchangeable note - 2,348,575
€ - €13,009.445

4. FINANCE INCOME/ (COSTS)
2022 2021
€ €
Bank interest and charges (2T72,435) (T21,585)
Other interest on loans (77.863) (327.221)
Realised gain/ (loss) on exchange 359,487 (155,431)
€9,189 €(1,204,237)




SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
formerly Cryptology Asset Group ple)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the yvear ended 31 December 2022

5. LOSS FOR THE YEAR BEFORE TAX

Profit before tax is stated after charging:

2022 2021
Total remuneration payvable to the external audits of £ E
the company 42,000 16,000
- Assurance services
- ther non-assurance services - 4,300
€ 42,000 € 20,300
Directors’ emoluments
= MNon-executive director feas 12,000 12,000
- Director's salary as part-time employee 60,000 60,000
= Director's sakary as full-time employee 174,368 181,182
€ 246,368 € 253,182
Compensation to other key management personneal (s
analysed as follows:
- Remuneration as full-time employee recharged
from subsidiary € 236,019 € 180,109
6. EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS
2022 2021
Amounts recharged from subsidiary, including directors' remuneration:
Wages and salaries €482,387  €428,548
Managerial and adminizstration 3 3
Average number of employees — Full time equivalents: i | 3
7. EARNINGS/ (LOSS) PER SHARE
2022 2021
Eamings/ (Loss) per share € (3.65) €0.70

The earnings/{loss) per share have been calculated on the net profits of the company, as shown in

statement of comprehensive income, divided by the average number of shares in issue.

Earnings/{Loss) per share for the year ended 31 December 2022 was calculated on the loss

attributable to shareholders of the company of € 208,794,135 (2021: profit of € 45,022,139) divided

by average number of shares of 57,.217,.500.



SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
(formerly Cryptology Asset Group plc)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the yvear ended 31 December 2022

8. TAXATION

The tax effect at the applicable tax rate on the accounting result and the tax charge for the year
are reconciled as follows:

2022 2021
€ €
Loss for the year before taxation (4,380,345) (2,704,811)
Tax at the applicable rate of 5% (2021: 35%) 219,017 946,684
Tax effect on disallowed expenses {219,017) 260,381
Tax effect on fair value adjustments . 749,658
Other tax adjustment - (2,807,105)
€ - €(820,382)
Comprising:
Current taxation - -
Deferred taxation - (820,382)
€ - € (820,382)
9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
2022 2021
€ €
Digital assets
Cost 817,926 817,926
Allowanca for impairment provisions! losses {817,826) (817 ,926)
€ - € -
Movements during the yvear
Additions - 817,926
impairment provisions/ losses . (817,926)
€ - € -
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SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
(formerly Cryptology Asset Group plc)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Computer and other Computer Total
office equipment software
€ € €

COsT
At 1 January 2022 4171 43,725 47 896
Additions 8,503 - 8,503
At 31 December 2022 12,674 43,725 56,399
DEPRECIATION
At 1 January 2022 2,738 38,520 41,258
Charge for the year 1,979 5.205 7,184
At 31 December 2022 4,717 43,725 48,442
MET BOOK VALUE
At 21 December 2022 € 7 957 L = € 7.957
COSsT
At 1 January 2021 4,171 43,725 47,896
Additions . : :
At 31 December 2021 4,171 43,725 47,896
DEPRECIATION
At 1 January 2021 1,695 26,787 28,482
Charge for the year 1,043 11,733 12,776
At 31 December 2021 2,738 38,520 41,258
NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 December 2021 € 1,433 € 5,205 € 6,638
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SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
(formerly Cryptology Asset Group plc)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the vear ended 31 Decamber 2022

11. DEFERRED TAX ASSET

At 1 January Recognised in At 31 December

2022 profit or loss 2022
Unutilised tax losses and capital
allowances € 1,190,076 E - €1,190,076
12. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES
2022 2021
L3 €
Cost
As at 1 January 240 240
Additions 200,000 -
€ 200,240 € 240

Az at 31 December 2022, the company held the following equity interesi:

Subsidiary and its Mumber, class & nominal Percentage of
registered office value of shares held issued shares held
Samara Advisory Limited 1,198 ordinary ‘A’ shares of 99.9%
Beatrice, 66 & 67, €1 each, 20% paid-up

Amery Street,

Sliema, SLM 1707

Maita

The financial staterments of Samara Advisory Limited {formerly Cryplology Advisory Lirmited)
prepared using the IFRSs as adopted by the EU and have been audited in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing.

The share capital and reserves of Cryptology Advisory Limiled (formerly Cryptology Advisory
Limited) at the balance sheet date stood as follows:;

2022 2021

€ £

Ordinary share capifal 240 240
Retained eamings (117,104) 1,976,770

€(116,864) €1.977.010
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SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
(formerly Cryptology Asset Group plc)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

12. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Subsidiary and its Mumber, class & nominal Percentage of
registered office value of shares held issued shares held
Ilconig Lab LS Accalerator Inc 4 500,000 ordinary shares 10084
1890 Seventh Avenue, 2A, of § 0.00001 each

Mew York NY 10026

LSA

The investment was purchased on 28 December 2022. The financial statements of the company

have not as yeal been prepared.
13. INVESTMENTS AT FVOCI

Quoted equity and other non-fixed income instruments measured at FVOCI:

2021
2022 re-stafed)
€ €
investments at FVOCI:
~ Opening balance 155,109,413 184,461,044
Maovements (at cost) 15,166,500 928,402
Fair value movements (Note a) {158,500,475) {30,280,033)
Closing balance (Note b) 11,775,438 155,100,413
Unguoted equily and other non-fixed income fnstrumants measured at FVOCT:
2021
2022 (re-staled)
€ €
Investmenis al FVOCI:
Opening balance 251,504,148 135,460,817
Maovements (at cost) (46 266,987 38.856,728
Unrealized gain on exchange 478,529 3,389 827
Fair valua movements (Mote a) {46,391,856) 73,796,774
Closing balance 158, 323,832 251,504,146
Assel-Managed Investment (Nofe c):
Opening balance 6,306,714
Disposals {al cost) - (6,306,714)
Closing balance . -
Total investments at FVOCI at year end € 171,099,270 € 406,613,559
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SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
(formerly Cryptology Asset Group plc)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

13. INVESTMENTS AT FVOCI {continued)
Motes:
(a) Fair Value Movements

The fair value basiz measurement of quoted investments has been determined on the basis of
Leval 1 inputs, being the quoted prices in aclive markets for identical assals and labilitias that the
enlity can access al the measurement date. The fair value of the investment decreased from
€ 155 million at yvear end to € 12 Millicn at the reporling date.

The fair value basis measurement of ungquoted investments has been determined on the basis of
Level 3 criteria. The investment group classification method has been used whereby assets were
sub-divided between classifications of sub-groups and analysed on basis of observable and
unobservable market data.

Management is required to use its own assumplions regarding uncbservable inpults because thers
iz litthe marketl activity and is unabke to corroborale the related obsarvable inputs. Unobservable
inputs require management to make certain projections about the information that would be used
by market participants in valuing assets or liabilities.

The basis has been derived by analyzing the underlying assets in the investee companies through
a combination of valuation techniques. In applying the valuation technigue, management also
adopted other criteria to factor market changes in the underlying assets and other sensitive market
variations in the valuation. The data sensitivity analysis was carried oul from unaudited sources
but was independantly extracted from information provided by third parties and management
representations. Other observable market information was obtained and the valuation technigue
models were compared o other observable markel informalion as follows:

i. Share prices of other share transfers effected subsequent to the Company’s acquisition of
shares, representing the price buyers in the market are willing to pay for the shares in
investes companias;

ii. Shareholders’ reports prepared by Management confirming the price the Company is
willing fo offer for the invesiment. These represent price indicators to investors from
valuation techniques parformed by Management

fii. Share buy-backs by the investee companies offering existing holders the option to sell the
shares; and

iv. MNet Asset Value technigues on investee companies amriving at the share base.

On this basis, valuation technigues were carried out on the financials of the investee companies
and data inputs were affected to consider future cashflows and other market available information.
In determining the fair value, we analysed the underlying asseis, and impairment tesis wera
provided on the sub-classifications. of assels io take into account the inherent variations and
volatility of the balances.

11|



SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
(formerly Cryptology Asset Group plc)

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

13. INVESTMENTS AT FVOCI {continued)

In carrying owt the above analysis we determined the MNet Asset Value and compared to
observable inputs disclosed above, including share prices for other share transfers effected. This
could only be applied if the observable market dala and share prices for similar investors investing
in the same investee companies could be substantiated to underying company valuations and
future company potential.

The fair value movements included in the quoted investments amounted to a decrease of
€158,.500,475 (2021 — decrease of € 30,280,033). The fair value movements included in the
unguoted investments amount to a decrease of € 46,391,856 (2021 - increase of € 73,796 T74).
The net total decrease of € 204,852 331 (2021 — increase of € 43,516,741) is reflacted in Other
Comprehensive Income. The Company shall be consistent in applying such valuation methods
from one perod to the next. Quantitative and qualitative information about unobsarvable inputs
and assumplions are also used.

(b) Assets offered as Collateral

At year end, included within quoted AFS investmeants, there were 1,326,942 shares to the value of
€ 8,173,862 at year end, which are being collateralized in favour of a related party. Interest of 5%
per annum was being charged on the amounis being offered as collateral.

ic) Assei-Managed Investment

The Asset-Managed Investment as disclosed in the investments at FVOC! is represented by a
corresponding exchangeable note included within non-current liabilities under Mote 17 to the
financial statements to the equivalent amaount.

The fair value of the Assal-Managed Investment was calculated solaly for the scope of determining
a potential future unrealized gain, using the same valuation technigues applied for the other
invesiments held by the Company. The exchangeable note can be exercised within a period of
five yeaars against the Asset-Managed Investment.

Upon the exercise of the exchangeable note, a gain may crystallize to the Company based on the
fair value increases of the Asset-Managed Investment on the date of the transfer. In March 2021,
the exchangeable note had been executed, and gains of € 2,348,575 have been materialized
based on the fair value determination of the investment.

14. OTHER ASSETS

Other assets consists of virtual currencies.
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SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
(formerly Cryptology Asset Group plc)

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

15. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2021
2022 {re-stated)
€ &

Amounts falling due affer more than one year:
Convertible Note (note a) - 375,281
Loans receivable from third parties - 848,771
Other assets 031,766 -

€931,766 €1,224,052

Amounts falling due within one year:
Amounts due from subsidiary (note b) a7,180 -
Loan advances to (note c):

Relatad party 500,000 -

Third party 2,822.257 200,000
Convertible Motes (note d) 100,000 1,100,000
Advanced payments to suppliers - 24,550
Other deblors (nole &) - 1,728,253
Taxation refundable (note f) 118.236 118,236
VAT recoverable 17.685 5.987
Prepayments and accrued income B45,977 T7.055

€ 4,301,345 € 3,254,091

Motes:

(a)

(b}
(c)

(d)

Al 31 December 2021, the convertible note camried interest at the rate of 2% per annum. The
issuer granted each noteholder the right to convert each Note, in whole, but not in part, at any
time during the Conversion period, with the final maturity date being set at 30 April 2023.

Al 31 December 2022, convertible noles amounted to € 3,358,933, against which a provision
for impairmeant was provided for,

Amounts due from subsidiary are unsecured, interast frae and repayable on demand.

Loan advances o related party bear interest of 5.5% per annum. Loan advances to third party
bear interest at the rate of 10% per annum, are unsecured and are repayable within one year,

Convertible notes consist of an amount of € 1 million which bears interest at the rate of 10 %
per annum. This was exercised in March 2022 through a conversion of shares. The
ramaining amounts of € 100,000 represent a converlible nole which bears interest at the rate
of 10% per annum,



SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
(formerly Cryptology Asset Group plc)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

15. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(e) Other debtors represent amounts which were paid by the company for purchase of
investments at FVOCI, The share transfer agreement was affected between the contractual
parties, bul the share transfer was not accepled and registered by the investea. The amount

was settled during the year undear review,

if} Taxation

Opening balance
Tax paid at source

16. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
(a) Share Capital

Authorised
64,000,000 Ordinary shares of € 0.05 each

i 1l 1 i
o7 217,500 (Ordinary shares of € 0.05 each

{b) Share Premium
Opening balance

Increase during the year
|ssuance of treasury stocks

Closing balance

(c) Treasury stock
Closing balance

Mote:

2022 2021

£ L3
118,236 =
- 118,236

€ 118236 € 118,236

2022 2021
€ 3,200,000 € 3,200,000

€ 2,860,875 € 2,860,875

54,053,895 23,862,113
31,840,000
(1,648,218)

L]

€54,063,895 €54,053,895

€ 81,118 £ -

During an Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 307 May 2022, the members present resohlved
o acquire, in its own name, the Company’s shares subject to the follawing conditions:

- Maximum guantity of shares shall not exceed 10% of the issued shares;
= Authority to acquire own shares shall be valid for 18 months; and
= Maximum price to buy-back the shares shall not exceed €80 per share,
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SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
(formerly Cryptology Asset Group plc)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the vear ended 31 December 2022

16. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

As at 31* December 2020, the Company had acquired a total of 31,491 own shares at a price of
€ 1,669,123, An amount of € 1,637,632, representing the excess above par value, was reflected
against retained eamings. During 2021, the company had acquired 134 own shares at a price of
€ 10.720. An amount of € 10,586, representing the excess above par value, was reflected against
retained earmings.

By 31 December 2021, all treasury stock has been issued. An adjustment of € 1,648,218 was
reflected against Share premium account to neutralize the effect on retained earnings, which
would have resulted from the criginal acquisition of the treasury stock.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company had acquired a total of 81,118 own shares at a price of
€ 3,697,809, An amount of € 3,616,691, representing the excess above par value, was reflected
against retained eamings.

(d) Fair value reserve

Fair value reserve represents the accumulated changes in fair value of the company's investments
at FVOCI. Upon disposal of the investments, the related fair value will be transferred directly to
retained earnings.

(e} Retained earnings

Retained eamings represent the accumulated operating profits after taxation after adjusting for
other comprehensive income, resulting in total retained eamings of € 44,500,582 (2021 -
€ 70,786,026) at year end. This primarily comprises the profit attributable to equity holders.

17. INTEREST-BEARING LOANS

2022 2021

€ £

Bank loan advancas (note a) - 2.012,505
Third party {note b) 4,404,899 :

€ 4404899 €2.012505

Noles:

{a) The bank loan of € 2 Milion has been granted for the purchase of securities. It carried
imterest on the basis of the three-month Eurlbor plus 2.5% per annum, subject to a
minimum interest rate per annum of 2.5%. This was repaid during the year.

(b} In 2022, the Company acquired loan from Equities First Holdings, LLC amounting to € 5.1

million. It carries a fived simple interest of 3.6% per annum. Pardial payment has been
made during 2022,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the yvear ended 31 December 2022

18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2022 2021

€ €

Bank overdrafis (nole a) 698,113 5.802.034
Amounts payable to subsidiary undertakings (note b) - 46,554
Loan advances from third pary {note c = B00,000
Capital creditors {note d) - 18,503,547
Trade creditors 107.957 5,150
Accruals 106,262 143,063

€912.332 € 26,291,248

Molas:

(a) Bank overdrafis raepresent short-term facilities with Baader Bank provided for the purchasa of
AFS investments. Thesa are pledged over the said investments held by the Company.

(b) Amounts payable to the subsidiary undertakings are unsecured, interest free and are
repayvable on demand.

c) Loan advances from third party bear interest at the rate of 5% per annum, and are repayable
within one year.

d} Capital creditors consist of an investment obligation towards the purchase of investments at
FWVOCI from a third parly. Bolh contractual parties agreed to cancel the loan on 9 January
2022 with a corresponding reduction in investrment valua. Payable on demand.

19. NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT

2021
2022 re-stated)
(a) Cash generated from/ (used in) operations € &
Lass balora taxalion (4,380, 345) (2,704 811)
Adjustment for;
Depreciation 7,184 12,776
Interast receivable (669,557) (386,103)
Interest payable 165,269 590,047
Fair value movements in investments at FVPTL - 2,141,882
Impairment provision' loss on intangible assets 3,734,214 817,526
Foraign exchanga movemeant [B2,995) -
Operating (loss) before working capital (1,226,230) (GB.283)
Decrease/ (increase) in investments at FVTPL - 159 576
Decrease/ (increase) in trade and other receivablas 1,655,169 (1.228,298)
Increasal [decraasa) in payables 65,539 {433,982)
Cash generated from/ (used in) operaling activities € 497 478- € (1.5T0.987)
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SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
(formerly Cryptology Asset Group plc)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For tha year ended 31 Decamber 2022

19. NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)

(b} Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of balance with banks. Cash and cash equivalents included
in the statement of cashflows and the statement of financial position comprise the following

amounts:

Cash al bank
Bank overdrafi

20. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

{a) Balances

2022 2021

€

432,954 1,353,430
(698,112) (5.992,934)
€ (265,158) € (4,639,504)

Amount due from and to subsidiary undertaking is disclosed in note 18 to the financial statemeants.

(b} Transactions

During the yvear under review, the Company caried out transactions, in its normal course of the
business and on an arm's length basis, with the following related undertakings:

Name of entity

Apeiron Investment Group Limited
Cryptology Advisory Limited
lconiq Lab U5 Accelerator Inc
Apeiron 101 Lid

Apeiron Advisory Limited

PreSight Capital Limited

Grey Study Capital Gmbh

Mature of relationship

Majority Shareholder
Subsidiary Undertaking
Subsidiary Undertaking
Related Undertaking
Related Undertaking
Related Underaking
Related Underiaking



SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
(formerly Cryptology Asset Group plc)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

20. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)

The following were the significant transactions carried out by the Company with ralated

undertakings having:
2022 2021
3 €
Transaclions with immediate subsidiary companies:
Income
Recharge of costs to subsidiary 2,100 1,967
Cosis
Recharge of administrative costs from subsidiaries 20,TM 13,256
Recharge of wages from subsidiary 262 215 180,165
Transachons with majority shareholder and related parties:
Income
Recharge of adminisirative and finance costs to shareholder 252,444 583.528
Costs
Recharge of administrative and finance costs from shareholder
and related parties 112,141 68,007
Capital
Purchase of AFS investments from shareholder - -
Balances with immediate subsidiary companies:
Amounts payable to immediate subsidiary underakings 97,180 48,554

{c) Majority Shareholder and Ultimate Beneficiary Owner

The majority shareholder of the company iz Apeiron Investment Group Limited, holding 48,92 %
(2021: 54.06%) of total shareholding, with the remaining shareholding baing held by various other

members, with a percentage holding of less than 20% each,.

Apeiron Invastment Group Limited is a company registerad in Malta, with ils registered address at
66 & 67, Beatrice, Amery Street, Sliema, SLM 1707, Malta. The ultimate beaneficial owner of
Apeiron Investment Group Limited is Mr. Christian Berthold Angermayer, a Garman MNational with

Passport Number C4YMOOZWL.
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(formerly Cryptology Asset Group plc)

WOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

21. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

By thair nature, the Company's activities are principally related to the use of fimancial instruments.
Tha main activity of thea Company is o invest in blockchain-model companias. It is established
knowledge that the activities will potentially expose it to a variety of risks, including credit risk,
liquidity risk, market risk and currency risk. The Company's risk management is coordinated by the
managing Director and the Advisory Board and focuses on actively securing the Company's short
to medium term cash flow by minimising exposure to financial risks. The Company's aim is to
disclose possible relevant information to enable users of the Financial Statements to evaluate the
nalure, exient and precautions taken of risks arising from financial instruments to which the
company is exposad al the end of the financial period.

211  Credit risk

This represents the risk of loss of principal or loss of interest o be earned from a borrower's failure
in repaying debts or else failure to meet contractual obligations. The credit nsk arises every time
the company may wanl to use future cash flows through the payment of current obligation,

In this scenarig, the credit risk may be egither on the borrower, where an obligation to repay both
the principal and the interest accrue in favour of the lender, or to the invesior who has placed
funds in securities or lcaned money where a foreseeable repayment of debt and interest thereon is

contemplated.

Credit risk may also be related o an investiment's return wheare yields on bonds correspond to their
supposed credit risk. The Company's exposura to credit risk related to the carrying amount of the
current financial assets, recognised at the end of the reporting period, as summarised below:

Motes 2022 2021
€ €
Class of financial assets - carrying amounts:
Other assels 14 8,542 8,542
Trade and other racaivables {axcluding taxation,
VAT and prepayments and accrued income) 15 4,451,203 2,577,024
Cash and cash equivalents 19 432,954 1,353,430

4,892,699 3,938,996

Durimg the year under review, the Company held non-cash current assets that were not subject 1o
any risk for liquidating them.

The majority of the traded financial assets and accounts receivablas will be eventually liquidated.

Furthermore, the Company continuously monitors defaulis of counterparties, identified either
individually or by group, and incorporates this information into its credit risk controls. The
Company’s policy is to deal with only creditworthy counterparties.

The Company considers that the above financial assets that are not impaired for each of the
reporting dates under review are of good credit quality, including those that are past due.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Far the year ended 31 December 2022

21. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The credit risk for Cash and Cash Equivalents i considered negligible, since the counterparties
are reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings.

Exposure to Credit risk on investments at FVOCI

The company assassas whether financial instrumeants have axperianced a significance increasa in
credit risk since initial recognition. When detarmining whether the risk of default on a financial
instrument has increased significantly, the Company considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort.

This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the
shareholder's historical experience and due diligence and KYC procedures affected on the
investea companias. The objective of the assessment is to identify whether a significant increase
in credit risk has cccurred for an exposure by comparing:

- The remaining lifetime probability of default as at reporting date: with

= The remaining lifetime probability of default for this point in time that was estimated at the
time of initial recognition of the exposure.

21.2 Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk thal an entity will encounter difficully in rasing funds to meet commitments
associated with financial instruments. Liquidity risk may result from an inability to sell a financial
assel quickly at close to its fair value. This is an important measure to take cognisance since any
assels held by the company should be saleable when contemplating in generaling immediate cash
requiraments.

In thizs scenario, the Company does take note of the fact that the market may be illiquid, hence the
liquidity risk factor, or quite liguid, hence the financial asset held by the company will increase in
value as there will be no potential capital loss in sight.

At 31 December, the company's financial liabilities have contractual maturities which are
summarised below:

Curent Non-Current

As of 31 December 2021 Due within one Due between
Mote year two to five years
£ €

Financial liabilities:
Interest baaring loans and borrowings 18117 G00,000 2012505

Trade and other payables 18 25,691,248 -

€ 26,291,248 € 2,012,505
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21. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

21.2 Liguidity risk {continued)

Az of 31 December 2022 Currant Non-Current
Due within one Due batween
Mote yvear bwo to five vears

Financial liabilities:
Interest bearing loans and bormrowings 1817 - 4,404 899
Trade and other payables 18 912 332 -

€ 912,332 € 4,404 899

The Company is confident that it will be in a good position to honour its obligations with the banks,
through the sale of some of its investments at FVOC! or through leveraging with other bankers.
Furthaermare, the company has support of its related parties. In this respect, the Company or any
of its subsidiaries, did not require immediate cash lo execute its activity, hance the liquidity risk
was minimal, if at all. Any new investment projects may be financed either in new cash-rounds
through fresh capital from new andfor existing members or through bank financing.

21.3 Market risk

Market risk is the rigk thal the fair value cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interast rate risk, currency
risk and other price risk. It arises in all areas of the company's activities and is managed by a
variety of different techniques as detailed below.

The objective of the Company is to manage and control markel risk exposures in order to optimise
return on risk while maintaining a market profile consistent with the Company's strategy. The major
risk hare is the movement of equily prices, particularly in this seclor of business. The risk is
mitigated by the faci, that managemen! makes a selection of investmeants built from experience
and by determining the markel risk commensurate with the returm on them. Whilst it is
Management's responsibility and commitment to focus on such unprediclability of the markets,
these are minimized as much as possibla,

The selecled Investment porifolio of the company, with its strong performance and its sirong
demand, gives the Company confidence of a stable position that is expected to reap even higher
results in the foreseeable futura,

The Company has also participated in US hedge funds in order lo ensure its portfolio is
rebalanced. The Company's Advisory Board is being structured to take these considerations into
account and with the sole aim to advise when, where and how to purchase andfor sell financial
assels.
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21. FINAMCIAL RISK MAMNAGEMENT (continued)
21.3.1 Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or fulure cash flows of a financial instrument would
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The company's exposure o interest rate
rizk is limited to the variable interest rate of interest- bearing loans and borrowings. Cash and cash
equivalents issued at variable rates expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk
Managament monitors the level of floating rate bank balances as a measure of cash flow risk
taken on.

Based on this analysis, management considers the potential impact on profit or loss of a defined
interest rate shift that is reasonably possible at the end of the reporting period is to be immaterial,
in view of the Company's limited exposure to bank and bormowings. Through strong business
relations with the bank, logether with the strong and profitable invesiments that are being
hypothecated, the Company managed to nagotiate a favourable interest rate, Such scenario is
expecied to continue in the coming months.

21.3.2 Currency risk

Exchange-rale risk arises from the change in price of one currency in refation to another and, the
fair value or a future cash-flow transaction emanating from the sale or purchase of a financial
instrument where exchange rate fluctuations may occur. Since one of its major invesiments lies
across national border and this is predominantly in US Dollars, the Company recognises that this
might creale an unpredictable gain or loss. At the reporiing date the exchange rale has moved in
favour of the Company.

The Company intends to mitigate currency risk by investing predominantly in Euro and in US
Dollars, both of which are stable currencies, Further, during the year under review, the Company
has also embarked to invest in hedge funds to mitigate the exposure to risk arising from
transactions denominated in 'US Doltars. The investmenis held that are denominated in US Dollars
are expecied to accrua higher refurns than the currency risks thal may arizse.

21.3.4 Other price risk

Other price risk s the risk that the fair valua of future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arsing from interast rate risk or
currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial
instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instrumants traded in the market.

The Company iz exposed lo equity price risks arising from the holding of equity instruments
classified either as available for sale or at fair value through profit or loss. The carrying amounts of
financial instruments at the reporting date which could potantially subject the Company to equity
price risk are disclosed in notes 13 and 14 to the financial statements.
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21. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)
21.3.4 Other price risk (continued)

The Company counteracts tha price risk by adopting an invesiment strategy of investing in start-up
companies with a potential for growth and consequent increasa in their market prices. The major
drivers are expected to continue to perform strongly in the fulure and to increase in value due to
thair decentralized operations in blockchain models, social media, as well as having the largest
dala centre in the word. Such factors are the current driving-force of these companies which are
working in a decentralized manner under the present situation,

21.3.5 Other risks

In view of the inherent volatility of the assets invested in by the Company, the management will
take safeguards nol to inflaie unnecessarily and incorrectly the valuations thereof. Coupled with
this approach, thiera is also risk on fair value computation risk in view of the fact thal investeas may
either not be prompt in providing information or the financial information provided does not carry an
independent assurance verification. Consequenily, the Management takes responsibility in
adopting proper tools and prudant measures in valuing is financial assels.

After year end, the company exposed itself to a collateral risk with related party, which comprises
1,326,942 shares in a quoted equily Invesiment which had a Market value of € 8173 962 Millicn at
year end. Significant flucluations in the market prices have affected the value of the investment
which continues to be monitored in the light of market conditions. This could give rise to further
exposure to the company in view of the decreased values on the investments therein stated and with
possible claims on the collateralized assets.

22, CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The company's capital management objectives are o ensure its ability 1o continue as a going
concern and o provide an adequate retum to shareholders.,

The Company's equity, as disclosed in the statement of financlal position, constitules its capital.
The Company's capital structure is monitored by the Directors with appropriate reference to its
financial obligations and commitments arizsing from operational requirements. In view of the
nalure of the Company's activities, the capital level as at the end of the reporing period Is
deemed adequate by the Company.

23. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company's accounting policy for determining the fair value of financial instruments is
dezcribed in notes 221, 222, 223 and 2212 o the financial statements. For financial
reporting purposes, fair value measuraments are calegorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inpuls to the fair values measurements are observable and the significance
of the inputs o the fair value measurement in its enfirety, which are described as follows:
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23. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices unadjusted in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs are inpuls, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, whether directly or indirectly. This category includes
instruments valued using: quoted market prices in active markets for similar instruments;
quoted prices for identical or similar instruments; quolted prices for identical or similar
instruments in markets that are considered less than aclive; or other valuation techniques in
which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from market data.

- Lewvel 3 inputs are observable inputs for the asset or liability. This category inciudes all
instruments for which the valuation technique includes inputs not based on observable data
and the unobservable inputs that have a significant effect on the instruments’ valuation. This
calegory includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for similar instruments
for which significant unobservable adjustments or adjustments are required to reflect
differences between the instrumenis.

For assets and liabilties that are recognised in the financial statements atl fair value on a
recurring basis, the Company determines whean transfers are deemed to have oocurmad batwean
Levels in the hierarchy at the end of each reporting period.

Basis of valuing financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

Azzets Lewel 1 Level 2 Lewvel 3 Total
€ € € €
Investments at FWOCI 11.775.438 . 159,323,832 171,098.270

The instruments classified within Level 3 comprise the investments at FVOC, In this respect, it has
io be ascertained whether the financial assel is active or not in the market, hence oblaining
financial information from the respective investeas,

Whilsl acknowledging that valuations only provide an estimate of true value, yel the Company
ansuras to be closest to accuracy by selecting the best practices in a valuation technique. As
contemplated in IFRS 13, the fair value measurement shall assume that a transaction takes place
al that date, considered from the perspeclive of a market paricipant that holds the financial assetl.
Therefore, our valuation of 'Fair Value' is the price that a financial asset can be sold al in an
arderly transaction in a market on that date under markel conditions, imespective as to whether the
price is observable on an Exchange or using a valuation approach.

During the year under review, the Company held shares that are not easily observable in arriving
at fair value. Such shares are not traded in the open market whilst the financial information
available from the invesies lacks detail. However, the Company holds information where shares
are being traded much higher than the original cost. The Company is unable to carry oul an
exhauslive search to identify the market price but intends to rest on the latest financing-rounds in
the investes at a discounted price for prudency sake, logether with other observable inputs.
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23. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

For reasons explained above, the Company has no option but to apply level 3 by making its utmost
in maximising the use of relevant observable inputs. In applying level 3, the Company always asks:

Is there an identical item held by ancther party as an assel?

If in the affirmative, the Company will use the market value of the market-participant that
holds the identical item;

The Company, always oblains financial information directly from the investee to compare
the Net Asset Value against the market value of the market-participant.

IFRS 13 does not preclude the Company from using our own collected data.

24, SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The following subsequent evenls took place, as follows:

Ll

Through a resclution passed during the year 2022, the Group continued to repurchase own
shares during 2023. An EGM was held on 23 March 2023 where it was resolved to
increase the maximum of repurchased shares from 10% to 25% of the issued share capital.
Up till time of raparting, 6,184,616 at a total valuation of €21M,

As already reported in these financials, CAG had purchased on 28 December 2022 a fully
owned subsidiary - lconic Lab U.S. Accelerator Inc. The company purchased had an issued
share capital of 4.5million Common Stock al par value of US$0.00001 per share and is
regulated under the laws of Delaware. In tumn, Iconic Lab U3, Accelerator Inc. has sub-
subsidiaries as shown in the organigram above on page

During 2023, CAG confinued to support its subsidiary | lconic Lab U.S. ) with further
injection of funds to meet its operational costs. Such capital contributions to the wholly
owned subsidiary are nol expected o be repaid by the subsidiary now or in tha fulure,
CAG, as the holding company, will support the subsidiary in its endeavours to confribule to
the enhancement of investment value,

In January 2023, the company participated in a buyback exercizse with Block.one. 7,000
shares in Block.one were =old at the price of US53,000 each and the transaction was
completed by 21* January'23.

On 2™ February 2023, the company entered in an buy-back agreement with its majority
shareholder for the repurchase of 3,428,580 CAG sharas al the prica of €3.50 each, The
amount of €12,000,030 was fully paid on 3™ February '23.

On 11" February 2023, the company entered in a buy-back confract with one of the
company's shareholders for-the repurchase of 1,061,008 CAG shares al €3.77 each, The
amaunt of €4,000,000.16 was fully paid by 12" February'23.
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24, SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (continued)

The Asset under Management agresment signad with Lansdowne Investments in February
2018 has besn extended up till 31" Dacember 2023. Meantime, the 2™ tranche of promate
gharas that were liquidated on the strength of such agreement materialized in March 2023
and booked at the value of US$861,000 ( €815,000).

The Company had re-activaled iis interest to plan listing on the Toronto Stock Exchange.
Dizcussions with the Exchange via assistance from established and rencwned law firm are
still undervay.

The Advisory Board has recommended to enler into a Convertible Loan Agreement with
xPay Holdings AG, in which the Company already holds an equity investment, for the
amount of €1.5 million. This amount will increase the convertible loan to €3.3 million and
will be exercised by end of 2023,

In February 2023, the Company participated in purchases of Northern Data shares up to a
maximum quantity of 50,000 shares at the max price of €11 each.

25. COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Certain comparative figures disclosed in the main components of these financial statements have
been reclassified to conform with the current year's presentation format for the purpose of fairer
presentation,

26. PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENT

Prior year profit and loss figure of € 34,094,836 were initially recorded through a profit from sale
of investments at FVOC| account and is baing restated directly to other comprehensive income
for the prior year. The cumulative fair value reserve of the investmenis at FWVOCI were also
reclagsified from retained eamings, The effect of the restatement on the financial statements is
summarised below:

2021
As previously 2021
reported Adjustments As restated
€ € €

Statement of comprehensive income
Profit from sale of investments at FWVOCI 34,094 836  (34,004,835) -

Quoted investments at FWVOCI: changes in fair (28,138,151)  (2,141,882) (30,280,033)

value

Unquoted invesiments at FVOCI: changes in (37,560,057) 36,238,717 T3, 796,774
fair valua

Statement of financial position
Fair value reserse - 2576846079 257,646,079
Retained eamings ' 328,432,105 (257,646,079) 70,786,026
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Independent auditor’s report

To the sharcholders of Samara Asset Group plc (formerly Cryprology Asser Group ple)
Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinban

We have audited the financial stavements of Samara Asset Group ple (formerly Crypmology Asser Group ple)
set out on pages 6 to 45 which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the
starcment of comprehensive income, statement of changes in cquity and statement of cash fAows for the year
then ended, and notes o the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In owsr opinion, the accompanying financial staterments give a true and fair view of the inancial position of the
company as at 31 December 2022, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended
in aceordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopred by the European Union
{ELY), and have been properdy prepared in accordance with the roquirements of the Companies Act, Cap. 386
(the “Act™).

Basis lor opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with [Intermational Standards on Auditing (15As8), Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Starements section of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the International
Erthics Standards Board for Accountants” Code of Ethics for Professional Accountznt (1ESBA Code) together
with the ethical requirements of the Accountancy Profession (Code of Ethics for Warrant Holders) Direcrive
issued in terms of the Accountancy Profession Act, Cap. 281 thar are relevant o our audit of the financial
statements in Malea, We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe thar the audir evidence we have obuined is sufficient and appropriate o provide a basis for our
opinion,

QOther information

The directars are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the directors” repornt
shown on pages 1 1o 5 which we obtaned prior to the date of this auditor's report, but does not include the
financial starements and our aeditors report thereon.

Crur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the orher information.
In connection with our audic of the financial statements, our responsibility is m read the other information

and, in doing so, consider whether the other informarion is marerially inconsistent with the financial starements
or aur knowledgze ohtained in the audit or otherwise appears o be materially misseated,

With respect to the directors’ report, we also considered whether the directons® report includes the disclosures
required by Aricle 177 of the Aet

45



o GrantThornton

Based on the work we have performed, in our opinion:

&  The information given in the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial sratements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements, and
* the directors” report has been prepared in accordance with the Act

In additon, in light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and i environment obrained in the
coutse of the audit, we are required o report if we have identified material misstatements in the directors’
report and other information that we obmined prior to the date of this auditor’s report. We have nothing o

repodt in this regard.
Responsibilibes of hose charged with governance Tor the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with 1FRS as adopted by the EU and are properly prepared in accordance with the provisions of
the Act, and for such internal conmrol as the direcrors determine is necessary 1w enable the preparation of
fimancial statements that are free from matedal misstternent, whether due to fraud or emor,

In preparing the financial starements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company's ability o
continue as 4 going concern, disclosing, as applicable, maners relating o going concern and using the going
eomncern basis of accounting unless the dircetors cither intend to hguidate the COMPany O 0 Cease :::pcrm'mm,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's responsibiliies for the audit of the financial slatemeants

Cur objectives zre (o obiain reasonable azsurance about whether the fnancial scatements as & whole are free
from marterial misstarement, whether due o fraud or eror, and o isswe an auditor’s report thar includes our
opinion. Reascnable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guaramee that an audit conducted in
accordance with [8As will abways detect 2 macerial misstatement when it exists, Misstarements can arse from
fraud or error and are considered marerial if, individually or in the aggregare, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial starements,

As part of an audit in accordance with the 15As, we exercise professional judgement and mainmin professional
scepticism throughour the audit. We alao:

= ldennfy and assess the nsks of material misstatement of the financial starements, whether due o fraud or
error, design and perform audir procedures responsive to those risks, and obain audic evidence that is
sufficicnt and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a marerial
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulding from eror, as fraud may involve
eollusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control

= Obemin an understanding of internal conmrol relevant o the audir in order o design audic procedures that
are appropriate in the circumsmnees, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the cffectivencss
of the company's internal control.

= Evaluare the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonabilencss of accounting estdmares
and relared disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropnarcness of management’s use of the going concemn basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obrained, whether a material uncertinny exists related o events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability o continue a5 a poing concern. [F we conclude
that a material uncermainey exists, we are required o draw arendon 0 our auditor’s report o the relaced
disclosurcs in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequarte, to modify our opinion. Ouwr
conclusions are based on the audic evidence obtained up o the date of our auditor's report, However,
furure events of conditions may cause the company 1o cease [ CONGNUE 55 3 FOINE CONCen.

= Ewvaluate the overall presenmation, strucrure and content of the financial statements, incheding the
disclosures, and whether the financial stements represent the underdying transaetions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentaricn.
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We communieate with chose :!u;gn:l with governance repaeding, among other marters, the p-]:mn-ud seope and
aming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control thar
we identify during our audic.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
We alen have responsibilities under the Companies Act, Cap. 3B6 to report to you if, in our apinion:

- adequare accounting records have not been kepr;
- the financial seatements are not in agreement with the accounting recosds; or
= we have not reccived all the information and explanations we require for our audit

We have nothing to repott to you in respect of these responsibilinies.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Mark Bugeja.

Mark Bugeja ner) for and on behalf of
GRANT THORNTON
Certified Public Accountants

Cieant Thornoon

Fore Business Centre

Trig L-Intornjatur, Zone |
Central Business District
Bickiskam CHBLD 1050
Mialta

28 Junc 2023



SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
{formerly Cryptology Asset Group pic)

DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2022

REVEMUE
Cost of investments
Fair valuea mavement on investments af FYTPL

GROSS OPERATING PROFIT/ LOSS
Dividends receivable
Impairmant 052 on intangible assals

TOTAL OPERATING PROFIT

EXPENDITURE
Administralive expenses
Other income

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ON ORDINARY
ACTIVITIES BEFORE FINANCE COSTS
Finance income’ (cosls)

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ON ORDINARY
ACTIVITIES BEFORE TAXATION

Schadule |
2022 2021
Papgas £ £
- 13,099,445
50 - (11,265,227)
- (2,141,882)
* (307.664)
- 337,817
(817,926)
- (787.773)
51 (5,059,091) (1,598,904)
50 659,557 886,103
(4,389.534) (1,500.574)
(4,389,534)  (1,500,574)
52 9,188  (1,204,237)
€ (4,380,345) €(2,704.811)
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SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC

(formerly Cryptology Asset Group plc)

DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT

Far the vear ended 31 Dacember 2022

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Audit fee

Consultancy fees

Commissions payable
Depreciation

Director's remuneration
Director's feas

Ganeral office axpenses

IT expenses

Impairment loss on receivable
Legal fees

Licences and permits

Listing feas

Markating costs

Muator vehicle running expenses
Other expenses

Professional fees

Recruitment fees

Repairs and mainlenance
Registration fees

Rent

Seminars and conferences
Stationery, printing and postages
Subscriptions
Telecommunication costs
Travelling and business promotion
Wages and salaries

= o page 49

Schedule 11
2022 2021
E £
45 200 16,000
= 8,550
- 600,000
7,184 12,776
24T 437 241,182
12,000 12,000
6,064 4 283
9,179 4,292
3,734,214 .
110,845 65,576
6,419 21,394
45,433 5,715
163,826 -
12,678 8,927
3,379 B75
111,583 284,282
4. 800 -
- 4,654
1.400 1.400
18,800 19,034
58,750 39,523
324 246
41,970 15,210
153 200
121,903 44 314
284 950 187,366
€ 5,059,091 € 1,598,904
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SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
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DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT
Far the vear ended 31 December 2022

FIMANCE INCOME/ [COSTS)
Bank and other charges

Bank intarest

Other interest on loans
Differences on exchange

= to page 49

Schedule [l

2022 2021
€ €

185,030 498,758
B7,405 222,826
77,863 327,221

(3508 487) 155,431

€(9,189) €1,204237
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SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
{formerly Cryptology Asset Group pic)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors present their consolidated annual report and financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Incorporation

Samara Asset Group p.l.c was incorporated and registered with the Malta Business Registry on
10 January 2018 and started trading forthwith.

The shares of Samara Asset Group p..c (ISIN MT0001770107) Ticker: CAP, (formerly 4UD)
have besn included in the primary market segment of the open market of the Disseldorf Stock
Exchange as of May 5, 2020 and are currently trading also on Gettex and Tradegate, with a
market valuation of € 2.51 at year end (2021: market value of € 8).

The listing on the primary market segment of the open market of the Dusseldorf Stock Exchange
has been undertaken, against the background of using the capital structure as a source of
financing in the future as part of the growth strategy.

Principal Activity of the Parent Company

The principal activity of the parent company is to a lesser degree, invest in digital assets and
mainly invest in companies with blockchain-related business models and, also, provide strategic
advice to these types of companies. During the year under review, it invested in companies with
underlying digital assets.

The Subsidiaries

Samara Advisory Limited (formerly Cryptology Advisory Limited} is a fully owned subsidiary of the
Company which provides consultancy services specifically related to the use of blockchain
technology.

lconig Lab U.S Accelerator Inc is a fully owned subsidiary of the Company. The investment was
purchased on 29 December 2022

Investment Rationale

As at year end the Company held a portfolio of investments that experienced a negative impact
on both quoted and unquoted investments. This contributed significantly to the performance of
the Company's financial results for the year under review. The Group adheres to a clearly
defined Investment policy which ensures transparency, consistency and a fair basis of valuing
financial instruments. In this regard, for unquoted investments, in view of limited information
available, the Group's measurement of fair value would be the price that the financial asset can
be expected to sell in the ordinary course of business, as long as the price indicated is supported
by sound financial judgement. To this end, the Group obtains sufficient information to measure
fairly the value of its investments from observable and unobservable inputs under normal market
conditions. In relation to quoted investments, these are valued on the basis of open market
information available at year end.



SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
(formerly Cryptology Asset Group plc)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
Investment Rationale (continued)

The Group’s Advisory Board is composed of key personnel well trained and experienced in the
field. The Advisory Board seeks to identify, evaluate and select ongoing viable projects that are
likely to have significant positive impact on the Group’s resuilts.

The Group is uniquely positioned to invest further in its existing portfolios. It also looks at other
innovative investment opportunities, which could include co-investing with other partners in viable
projects such as crypto-asset management.

The global macro-economic scenario has surely affected the Group's investments strategic
approach, particularly the current trends in the financial and digital assets’ market. The Group
intends to act prudently when it comes to considering new investments.

Business Development and Outlook

The Group has developed very positively since its foundation where the digital assets showed a
significant increase. However, at time of reporting, the digital assets market has seen a
substantial dip with prices plummeting more than 55% from its closing of the previous financial
year. With regards to traditional investments, the market is also experiencing price-bruising
mainly caused by the macro-economic outlook, both geopolitical and economically, where Central
Banks have increased interest rates and inflation is currently eroding purchasing power. It is
expected that markets will stay turbulent till early Quarter 2 of 2023.

According to latest eurozone analysis, the economic data provides further fears of a deep
recession. This suggests a broadened slowdown in most of the economies, particularly in French
and German economies. The economic outlook and economic indicators looked pessimistic in
Quarter 3 and Quarter 4 of 2022 with the negative sentiment cascading onto Quarter 1 of 2023.
We are seeing some improvements, but the rising interest rates will continue to weigh on the
sentiment.

Notwithstanding all the above, the Group is confident the market will see a positive change
towards mid-2023 and is poised lo participate slowly but securely in upcoming investment
opportunities.

The Group will expand its existing stake with suitable companies if management believes that
these companies complement to the existing holdings in a meaningful way, and thereby the
strategy of the Group is to continue to build a diversified portfolio of companies with blockchain-
based business models.

It is the Group's intention to be a key player in the industry by hamessing the experience to
mitigate risks and avoid volatility scenarios mainly by seeking and harvesting new investment
opportunities by investing in hi-tech companies. To this end, the Group, will continue to invest in
key human resource talents to enhance its corporate governance and to assist it in the ventures
which it intends to pursue. The Board of Directors seeks to consistently improve business resulis
and sustain continuous growth in the market in which it operates, and in line with its investment
strategies.



SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
(formerly Cryptology Asset Group plc)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group's principal risks and uncertainties are further disclosed in Notes 21 and 22 and
specific risk evaluation to Fair Value Measurement as denoted in Note 23 to the financial
statements.

Events after the financial reporting date
Disclosures in relation to subsequent events are set out in Note 24 to the financial statements.
Risks posed by COVID-19 and other economic factors

The continuance of the coronavirus (COVID-19) across the whole world did not impact on the
Group's financial position or on the day-to-day activities. The Group did not experience any
financial recession, on the contrary, the financial arena was very active and promising.

Eventually, by end of Quarter 1 of 2022, al! COVID-19 restrictions on the intemational arena were
lifted and business resumed as normal. Liquidity required for new investments was adequately
tapped and the Group’s activities were never hindered.

Results

The directors report a Group loss for the year after taxation of € (6,474,219) (2021: loss of €
291,902) and total Group comprehensive loss of € 210,888,021 (2021: profit of € 46,614,666).
The Group losses will be deducted to profits brought forward of € 72,762,798, leaving
accumulated profits of € 44,125,868 to be carried forward to next year, after reflecting he
deduction from treasury stock amounting to € 3,616,691 (2021: addition of € 1,637,632).

Performance Review

Initially, the Group's objective was to invest in major investments in USA and Germany. During
the past five years, it invested in companies that have yielded positive results. During the year
under review the Group's profitability has emanated primarily from the sale of Investments at fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) and from ‘carry’ arrangements for assets
held under management for third parties. In addition to the operating profits generated during the
year, the Group registered a negative contribution to Total Comprehensive Income derived from
fair values changes on these investments for both ‘quoted’ and ‘unquoted’ invesiments.

During the year under review, the Group raised additional funds of € 5.1 Million through a
Securities Loan Agreement where it sold ‘quoted’ securities with a simultaneous condition and
obligation to repurchase equivalent securities at the repurchase closing date of 15" September
2024. Further funds raised during the year emanated from share repurchase exercise by
investees.

On 30" May 2022, an Extra-ordinary General Meeting was held where the shareholders approved
a treasury buyback with trading commencing in July 2022.



SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
{formerly Cryptology Asset Group plc)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)

Dividends

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

Financial Reporting Framework

The directors have resolved to prepare the Group's financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022 in accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting

Standards (IFRS), as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and as
adopted by the European Union.

Directors
The following have served as directors of the company during the year under review:

Mr. Jefim Gewiet: Director acting as Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Patrick Lowry: Director acting as Chief Operations Officer
Dr. Jorg Werner: Non-Executive Director

In accordance with the Articles of Assaciation, all the directors shail retire from office at least
once every three years.

Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The Companies Act, 1995 requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial
year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company as at the end of the
financial year and of the financial performance of the company for that year. In preparing those
financial statements, the directors are required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
- make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

- ensure that the financial statements have been drawn up in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards, as adopted by the European Union;

- account for income and expenditure relating to the accounting period on an accruals basis;

- ensure that the financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis unless it is
inappropriate to presume that the company will continue in business as a going concern.

The directors are also responsible for designing, implementing and maintaining internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. The directors are also
responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any time the financial position of the company and to enable them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Companies Act, 1995.



SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
(formeriy Cryptology Asset Group pic)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (Continued)

Statement of directors’ responsibilities (continued)

They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other iregularities.

The directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge:
- the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group at
31 December 2022 and of its financial performance and its cashflows for the year then
ended, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU on the basis explained in Note 1
to the financial statements; and
- the Annual Report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the
business and the position of the Group together with additional information of the principal
risks and uncertainties that the Group faces.
Auditors
Grant Thorton had intimated their willingness te engage with the Group acting as statutory

auditors of both the holding company — Samara Asset Group plc (formerly Cryptology Asset
Group plc) and its subsidiary — Samara Advisory Limited (formerly Cryptology Advisory Limited).

A resolution for their reappointment will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.
BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

gcfeht.( }7

Mr. Jefim Gewiet Mr. Patrick Lowry
Director Director

Registered Office:
‘Beatrice’, 66 & 67,
Amery Street,
Sliema, SLM 1707
Malta

28 June 2023



SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
(formerly Cryptology Asset Group plc)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Group
Group (re-stated)
2022 2021
Note € €
REVENUE 3 89,713 13,196,945
Cost of investments - (11,265,227)
Fair value movements {2,120,622) (309,382)
GROSS OPERATING PROFIT (2,030,909) 1,622,326
Dividends receivable - -
impaiment provision on intangibles - (517,926)
TOTAL OPERATING PROFIT (2,030,909) 804,400
Administrative expenses (5,172,755) (1,630,321)
Other income 673,942 971,460
{LOSS)/ PROFIT BEFORE
FINANCE INCOME/ (COSTS) (6,529,722) 145,539
Finance income/ (costs) 4 9,042 (1.204,769)
(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR
BEFORE TAXATION 5 (6,520,680) (1.059,230)
Taxation 8 46,461 767,328
(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR
AFTER TAXATION (6,474,219) {291,902)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Changes in fair value:
Quoted investments at FVOCI (158,500,475) {30,280,033)
Unquoted investments at FVOCI {46,391,856) 73,796,774
Foreign exchange translations 478,629 3,389,827
{204,413,802) 46,906,568
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME € (210,888,021) € 46,614,666

The notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Holding

Holding (re-stated)

2022 2021

€ €

- 13,099,445
(11,265,227)

(2,141,882)

(307,664)

- 337,817

- (817,926)

- (787,773)

(5.059,091) (1,598,904)
669,557 886,103
(4,389,534) (1.500,574)
9,189 {1.204,237)
(4,380,3458) (2,704,811)

- 520,382
(4,380,345) (1,884,429)
(158,500,475) (30,280,033)
{46,391,856) 73,796,774
478,529 3,389,827
(204,413,802) 46,906,568
€(208,794,147) €45,022,139




SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
{formerly Cryptology Asset Group pic)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 December 2022

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment

Investment in subsidiaries
Goodwill

Investments at FVOC|
Trade and other receivables
Deferred tax asset

Current Assets

Other assets
Trade and cther receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Share capital

Share premium

Treasury stock

Fair Value reserve
Retained eamings

Non-Current Liabilities
Interest-bearing loans

Current Liabilities
Trade & other payables

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

The notes on pages 6 to 48 form an integral part of the financial statements. These Financial State

Notes

10
11

13
15
12

14
15

16 (a)
16 (b)
16 (c)
16 (d)
16 (a)

17

18

Group Holding

Group (re-stated) Holding (re-stated)

2022 2021 2022 2021

€ € € €

7,957 6,789 7,957 6,638

- - 200,240 240

200,000 - - -
171,099,270 406,613,559 171,099,270 406,613,559
931,766 1,224,052 931,766 1,224,052
1,191,062 1,190,076 1,180,076 1,190,076
173,430,055 409,034,476 173,429,309 409,034,565
8,542 2,008,489 8,542 8,542
4,087,209 3,137,053 4,301,345 3,254,001
432,954 1,353,430 432,954 1,353,430
4,528,705 6,498,972 4,742,841 4,616,063

€ 177,958,760 €415533448 €178,172,150 € 413,650,628
2,860,875 2,860,875 2,860,875 2,860,875
54,053,895 54,053,895 54,053,895 54,063,895
(81,118) - (81,118) -
71,520,675 257,646,079 71,520,675 257,646,079
44,383,488 72,762,796 44,500,592 70,786,026
172,737,815 387,323,645 172,854,919 385,346,875
4,404,899 2,012,505 4,404,899 2,012,505
816,046 26,197,298 912,332 26,291,245

€ 177,958,760 €415533,448 €178,172,150 € 413,660,628

approved by the directors on 30 June 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

<
Mr. Jefim Gewiet
Director
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SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
(formerly Cryptology Asset Group plc)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2022

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash from (used in) operations
Interest paid

Interest received

Taxation paid

NET CASH FRONV (USED IN)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets
Proceeds from sale of intangibles
Disposal of AFS investments
Purchase of AFS investments
Convertible loan advances

NET CASH FROM/ (USED IN)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issue of share capital

Issue of share premium
Repurchase of own shares
Bank loan advances

Loan advances from third party
Repayment of third party loans
Loan advances to related party

NET CASH FROM/ (USED IN)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net movement in Cash and Cash
Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the

beginning of Year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT END OF YEAR

The notes form an integral part of these financial statements,

Group Group Holding Holding
2022 2021 2022 2021

€ € € €

163,745 (1,605,723} 497,478 (1,570,987)
(165,269) {460,037) (165,269) {459,505)
669,557 582,606 669,557 582,606

- {125,311) - {118,236)

658,033 {1,608,465) (1,001,766) (1,566,122)
(8,503) . (8,503) -

- (817.,926) - (817,926)

- - (200,000) .
15,256,560 35,308,316 15,256,560 35,308,316
(4,764,862) (56,438,669) (4,764,862) (56,438,669)
(3,358,933) (1,079,127) (3,358,933)  (1,079,127)
7124262 (23,027,406) 6,924,262 (23,027,406)

- 160,000 . 160,000

- 31,840,000 - 31,840,000
(3,697,809) (10,720)  (3,697,809) (10,720)
2,992,394 522,490 2,992,394 522,490
- 600,000 - 600,000

(600,000) (6,450,860) (600,000} (6,450,860)
(2,102,534) - {2,246,267) -
3,407,949 26,660,910 (3.551,682) 26,660,910
4,374,346 2,025,039 4,374,346 2,067,382
(4,639,504) (6,664,543) (4,639,504) (6,706,8806)
€(265,158) €(4,639,504) €(265,158) € (4,639,504)
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SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
{formerly Cryptology Asset Group plc)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 Decembar 2022

1. COMPANY INFORMATION AND BASIS FOR PREPARATION
1.1 Company Information

Samara Asset Group plc {formerly Cryptology Asset Group plc), the ‘Company’, was incorporated
and registered with the Maita Business Registry on 10 January 2018 and started trading fortwith.
The Company's registered office address and principal place of business is located at Beatrice, 66 &
67, Amery Street, Sliema, SLM 1707, Malta. The Company’s principal activity company is to, a
lesser degree, invest in digital assets and mainly invest in companies with blockchain-related
business models and, also, provide strategic advice to these types of companies.

1.2 Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements of Samara Asset Group p.l.c (formerly Cryptology Asset
Group plc) have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of Intermnational Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS), as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and
as adopted by the European Union.

These financial statements have also been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1995 (Chapter 386, Laws of Malta).

1.3 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets, liabilities and results of the Company
and its subsidiary undertakings drawn up to 31 December each year. Subsidiary undertakings are
those companies over which the Group has control, either by way of majority shareholding, through
contractual agreements with the other vote holders of the investee or rights arising from other
contractual agreements, giving it the power to govern financial and operating policies of the
investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if, and only if, the Group has:

- Power over the investee (i.e existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee),

- Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
- The ability to use its power over the investee to affact its raturns.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary
begins when the Group obtains control of the subsidiary, and ceases when the Group loses control
of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the statement of comprehensive income from the date the Group
gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair value of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.

i1



SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
(formerly Cryptology Asset Group plc)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

1. COMPANY INFORMATION AND BASIS FOR PREPARATION (continued)

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis, either at fair value or at non-controlling interest's proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of acquiree's identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date
through profit or loss.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and
the fair value of non-controlling interest over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If this consideration is lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, the difference is recognised in profit or loss.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the equity
holders of the parent of the Group and to non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustiments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s
accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The parent company of the Group wholly owns two subsidiaries, which are set out in Note 11. No
associated undertakings were held at year end.

1.3 Basis of accounting

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost. Assets and liabilities are measured
at historical cost except for the following that are measured at fair value: financial assets measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), and financial assets classified at fair
value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

These Financial Statements are prepared on a going concern basis. The Directors regard this as
appropriate, after due consideration of the Group’s statement of financial position, capital adequacy
and solvency.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards

The new and revised standards that became effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022 made several minor amendments to a number of IFRSs. None of the changes to

IFRSs and interpretations has had, or is expected to have, a material impact on the Group's
financial statements. :

12



SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
({formerly Cryptology Asset Group plc)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1.1 New and amended standards adopted by the Group

Information on new standards, amendments and interpretations that are relevant to the Group's
financial statements is provided below. Certain other new standards and interpretations not listed
below have been issued but are not relevant and therefore are not expected to have any impact on
the Group's financial statements.

The Group started to adopt the new accounting pronouncements which have become effective this
year, and are as follows:

Onerous Contract — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to IAS 37)

This pronouncement amended IFRS 37 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’
and clarifies that when assessing if a contract is onerous, the cost of fulfilling it includes all costs
related diractly to the contract. Such costs include both:

« the incremental costs of the contract (i.e. costs a company would avoid if it did not have the
contract, like direct labor and materials); and

« an allocation of other cosis that relate directly to fulfilling the contract {(e.g. contract
management and supervision, or depreciation of equipment used in fulfilling it).

Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to IAS 16)

The amendments introduce new guidance to 1AS16 ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’, which prohibit
entities from deducting from the costs of PPE amounts received from selling items produced while
the entity is preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, the entilty will recognise such sales
proceeds and related costs in profit and loss.

These amendments do not have a significant impact on these financial statements and therefore the
disclosures have not been made.

2.1.2 New Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that
are not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, several new, but not yet effective,
Standards and amendments to existing Standards, and Interpretations have been published by the
IASB. None of these standards or amendments to existing standards have been adopted early by
the Group. These are the following:

On 23 January 2020, the IASB issued 'Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current
(Amendments to IAS 1)' providing a more general approach to the classification of liabilities under
IAS 1 based on the contractual arrangements in place of the reporting date. The amendments are
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.
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SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
(formerly Cryptology Asset Group plc)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards (continued)

On 23 January 2020, the IASB issued 'Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current
{Amendments to IAS 1} providing a more general approach to the classification of liabilities under
IAS 1 based on the contractual arrangements in place of the reporting date. The amendments are
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.

On 18 May 2017, the IASB issued IFRS 17 ‘Insurance Contracts’ that require insurance liabilities to
be measured at a current fulfiment value and provides a more unfirm measurement and
presentation approach for all insurance contacts. These requirements are designed to achieve the
goal of a consistent, principle-based accounting for insurance contracts. IFRS 17 supersedes IFRS
4 as is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after from 1 January 2023.

The directors are assessing the impact that the adoption of these International Financial Reporting
Standards will have on the financial statements in the period of initial application. None of these
Standards or amendments to existing Standards have been adopted early by the Group.

The directors anticipates that all relevant pronouncements will be adopted for the first period
beginning on or after the effective date of the pronouncement. New Standards, amendments and
Interpretations not adopted in the current year have not been disclosed as they are not expected to
have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

22 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND REPORTING PROCEDURES (continued)

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, uniess otherwise
stated.

2.2.1 Non-derivative financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments comprise in equity and debt securities, trade and other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, loans and borrowings, and trade and other payables. Non-
derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition
non-derivative financial instruments are measured as described below.

A financial instrument is recognised if the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets are derecognised if the Group's contractual rights to the cash flows
from the financial assets expire or if the Group transfers the financial asset to another party without
retaining control of substantially all risks and rewards of the asset. Regular way purchases and sales
of financial assets are accountsd for at trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits itself to
purchase or sell the asset.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. After initial recognition, these are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
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SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
{formerly Cryptology Asset Group pic)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2.2  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND REPORTING PROCEDURES (continued)
2.2.1 Non-derivative financial instruments (continued)

Discounting is omitted when the effect of discounting is immaterial, or when the interest rate
attached to the instrument exceeds the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. The Group's cash
and cash equivalents, trade and most other receivables fall into this category of financial
instruments. Individually significant receivables are considered for impairment when they are past
due or when other objective evidence is received that a specific counterparty will default.
Receivables that are not considered to be individually impaired are reviewed for impairment in
groups, which are determined by reference to the industry and region of a counterparty and other
available features or shared credit risk charadteristics.

The percentage of the write down value is then based on recent historical counterparty default rates
for each identified group. Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured initially at fair value
plus transaction costs, except for financial assets and financial liabilities carried at fair value through
profit and loss, which are measured initially at fair value. They are subsequently measured as
described below. Financial liabilities are derecognised if the Group's obligations specified in the
contract expire or are discharged or cancelled.

2.2.2 Debt instruments

Debt instruments are those instruments that meet the definition of a financial liability from the
issuer's perspective, such as loans, govemment and corporate bonds. Classification and
subsequent measurement of debt instruments depend on:

i. The Group's business model for managing the asset; and
ii. The cash flow characteristics of the asset.

Based on these factors, the Group classifies its debt instruments into one of the following three
measurement criteria:

» Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those
cash flow represent solely payments of principal and interest on specified dates. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in ‘Interest and similar income’ using the
effective interest rate method.

s Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI): Financial assets that are held for
collecting of contractual cash flows and for selling the assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest and that are not designated at FVTPL,
are measured at FVOCl. Movements in the camying amount are taken through OCI. Foreign
axchange gains and losses on the instrument's amortised cost which also recognised in OCI.
No impairment gains or losses are recognised since these are reflected in the movement in
fair value through OCIl. When the financial asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in OCI is kept in OCI. Interest income from these financial assets is
included in ‘Interest and similar income' using the effective interest-rate method.
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SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
(formerly Cryptology Asset Group plc)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2.2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND REPORTING PROCEDURES (continued)
2.2.2 Debt instruments (continued)

» Fair Value through Profit or loss (FVTPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVTPL is recognized in profit or loss. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in ‘Interest and similar income’ using the effective interest rate
method.

2.2.3 Equity instruments

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective;
that is instruments that do not contain a contractual obligation to pay and that evidence a residual
interest in the issuer's net assets.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not heid for trading, the Group may irrecoverably
elect to present changes in fair value in OCI. This election is made on an investment-by-investment
basis and is irecoverable. Other equity instruments are classified as measured at FVTPL. Gains
and losses on such equity instruments are never reclassified to profit and loss and no impairment is
racognized.

Dividends are recognized in profit or loss unless they clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost
of the investment, in which case they are recognized in OCIl. Cumulative gains and losses
recognized in QCI are kept within OCI on disposal of an investment.

Gains and losses on equity investments held for trading at FVTPL are included in the ‘Trading
profits’ in line with the statement of profit or loss. The Group classifies its equity instruments as
follows:

i. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: This classification includes financial
assets classified as held for trading. Financial assets at FVTPL are initially recognized and
subsequently measured at fair value based on quoted bid prices in an active market.

ii. Financial assets at fair value through OCI: Investment securities are classified as available-
for-sale financial assets in view of the fact that these are intended to be held for an indefinite
period of time, but which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest
rates, exchange rates or market prices. All investment securities are initially measured at
fair value plus transaction costs, if any, that were directly attributable to their acquisition.

Those investments securities classified as available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently
measured at fair value based on quoted bid prices in an active market, or be reference to a valuation
technique if the market was not active. Shares held as investments are classified as 'Available for
Sale Investments’ and these are valued at acquisition cost excluding any other ancillary costs. All
shareholding listings in each respective investee is below the 20% holding.
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SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
(formerly Cryptology Asset Group plc)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Far the year ended 31 December 2022

2.2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND REPORTING PROCEDURES (continued)
2.2.4 Convertlble instruments

Convertible instruments, which give the holder the right to either demand repayment of the principle
amount or to write off the debt and instead convert the balance into shares, are split up recognising
both the liability and the equity components.

The liability component is worked out on the basis of the present value of the payments at
the market rate of interest. Once the liability component has been calculated, the equity component
represents the difference between the cash paid and the liability component. This scenario applies
when the market rate of interest will be higher than the coupon rate.

2.2.5 Investment in subsidiaries and equity-accounted investees

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group. Control is the power to govern the financial
& operating policies of an entity to obtain benefits from its activities. Investments in subsidiaries and
equity-accounted investees are initially include in the Group’s statement of financial position at cost
and subsequently at cost less any impairment loss which may have arisen. Interest in equity-
accounted investees are accounted for using the equity method at Group Level. These are initially
recognized at cost, which includes transaction costs. Subsequently the consolidated financial
statements include the Group’'s share of profit or loss and other comprehensive income of equity-
accounted investees, until the date on which significant influence ceases.

Dividends from the investments are recognised in profit or loss when its right to receive the dividend
is established. At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amount of its
investments in subsidiaries and equity-accounted invesiees to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment, and if such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated, and an impairment loss is accounted for as explained below.

2.2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is provided for on the straight-line method at rates
intended to write of the cost to its residual value over the expected useful life. The annual rates
used are as follows:

%

Computer and other office equipment 25
Computer software 25

Depreciation begins when the asset is available for use and continues until the asset is
derecognised. Depreciation charge is recognised within ‘cost of sales’ and ‘administrative expenses'
in the statement of comprehensive income,



SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
(formerly Cryptology Asset Group plc)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2.2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND REPORTING PROCEDURES (continued)
2.2.6 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Gains and losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined by reference to their
carrying amount and are taken into account in determining operating profit. The residual values and
useful lives of the assets are reviewed and adjusted as appropriate, at each financial reporting date.
The carrying amount of an asset is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
carrying amount of the asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Subsequent costs are included in the carrying amount of the asset or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.  All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the statement of comprehensive income during the financial year in
which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment that are temporarily idle and in course of construction are recognized
in the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment at cost within ‘Assets under construction’.

2.2.7 intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assels are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized
development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in profit and loss in the year in
which the axpenditure is incurred.

The useful life of intangible assets is assessed to be either finite or infinite. The Group’s intangible
assets consist of digital assets, which are held for the Group's own account. No amortisation is
being provided to write of the cost to its residual value, since the assets do not have a definite useful
life.

The digital assets were classified as intangible assets under IAS 38, ‘Intangible Assets’, because:

- it is a resource controlled by an entity (that is, the entity has the power to obtain the
economic benefits that the asset will generate and to restrict the access of others to those
benefits) as a result of past events and from which future economic benefits are expected to
flow to the entity;

- it is identifiable, because it can be sold, exchanged or transferred individually;

- it is nat cash or a non-monetary asset; and

- it has no physical form.
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SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
(formerly Cryptology Asset Group pic)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2.2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND REPORTING PROCEDURES (continued)

2.2.7 Intangible assets (continued)

Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the intangible asset is assessed
and written down immediately to its recoverable amount.

For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped in the lowest levels for which there
are largely independent cash inflows (cash-generating units). As a result, some assets are tested
individually for impairment and some are tested at cash-generating unit level. All individual assets or
cash-generating units are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of its fair value less costs to sell and its
value in use. To determine the value in use, management estimates expected future cashflows from
each cash-generating unit and determines a suitable discounting rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. Discount factors are determined individually for each cash-
generating unit and reflect their respective risk profiles as assessed by management. impairment
losses are recognised immediately in the income statement. Impairments losses for cash-
generating units are charged pro rata to the assets in the cash-generating unit. All assets are
subsequently reassessed for indications that an impairment loss previously recognised may no
longer exist.

An impairment loss that had been previously recognised is reversed if the cash-generating unit's
recoverable amount exceeds its carrying amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent
that the assets camying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been previously
recognised.

2.2.8 Provisions, contingent liabifities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when present obligations resulting from a past event will probably lead to
an outflow of economic resources from the Group and amounts can be estimated reliably. Timing or
amount of the outflow may still be uncertain. A present obligation arises from the presence of a legal
or constructive commitment that has resulted from past events, for example, product warranties
granted, legal disputes or onerous contracts.

Restructuring provisions are recognised only if a detailed formal plan for the restructuring has been

developed and implemented, or management has at least announced the plan’s main features to
those affected by it. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.
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SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
{formerly Cryptology Asset Group pic)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2.2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND REPORTING PROCEDURES {continued)
2.2.8 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets (continued)

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation,
based on the most reliable evidence available at the reporting date, including the risks and
uncertainties associated with the present obligation. Where there are numerous similar obligations,
the iikelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
obligations' class of abligations as a whole. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where
the time value of money is material. All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted
to reflect the current best estimate.

A contingent liability is (a) a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occcurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the entity; or (b} a present obligation that arises from past events but
is not recognized because: (i) it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or (i} the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured with sufficient reliability. Contingent liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed unless
the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the entity. Contingent assets are not recognized. Contingent assets are
disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

2.2.9 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months.

2.2.10 Related Undertakings and Related Parties

The term ‘related undertakings’ refers to companies having common shareholders or common
ultimate shareholders. A party is related to an entity if, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, the party controls or in under common control with the entity, or has an interest in the
entity which can give significant influence on control over the entity.

2.2.11 Bank and Other Borrowings
Bank and other borrowings are recorded at the proceeds received. Finance charges are accounted

for on an accrual basis and are shown with accruais to the extent that they are not settled in the
period in which they arise.
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SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
(formerly Cryptology Asset Group plc)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2.2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND REPORTING PROCEDURES (continued)
2.2.12 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, its
absence, the most advantageous market to which the Group has access at the date. The fair value
of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.

Fair value conditions, including but not limited to liquidity in the market, at a specific date may and
therefore differ significantly from the amounts which will actually be received on the maturity or
settlement date. The best evidence of fair value of an instrument is a quoted price in an actively
traded market for that instrument. The detemmination of what constitutes an active market is
subjective and requires the collation of data and the exercise of judgement. A financial instrument is
regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency, and those prices represent
actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

Where it is concluded that an active market does not exist, a valuation technique is used. The latter
gives consideration of transaction prices in inactive markets, however it makes use of other
observable market data. The main assumptions and estimates which management considers when
using valuation techniques are the likelihood and expected timing of future cash flows on the
instrument and a risk premium. The valuation techniques used by the Group incorporate all factors
that market participants would consider in setting a price and are consistent with accepted
methodologies for pricing financial instruments.

The maijor application of fair value measurement is adopted for the valuation of Available-for-Sale
Investments disclosed in the financial statements under Non-Current Assets. In the absence of
Level 1 and Level 2 inputs, the directors have applied Level 3 inputs to value these assets.
Observable and unobservable inputs are used in this case, since there is little market activity for the
asset at measurement date. The directors developed these inputs using the best information
available in the circumstances, including the Group's own data, taking into consideration all
information about market participants assumptions that is reasonable available. A combination of
valuation techniques were adopted taking into account the current replacement value of the asset
and available, unaudited financial data of the underlying assets.

2.2.13 Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the
income statement except to the extent that the tax arises from a transaction or event which is
recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax is based on the taxable profit for the year, as determined in accordance with tax laws,

and measured using tax rates, which have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2.2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND REPORTING PROCEDURES (continued)
2.213 Income taxes (continued)

Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method in respect of temporary differences arising
from differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax is not
recognised for the following temporary differences: the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a
transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss, and differences relating to the investment in subsidiary to the extent that the Group’s ability
to control the timing of the reversal of temporary differences and it is probable that those temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets for the carry-forward of
unused tax losses are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the unused tax losses can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date.

2.2.14 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable for services rendered
in the normal course of business, net of value added tax. Revenue is recognized to the extent that it
is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity and these can be measured reliably.
A contract with a customer that resuits in the recognised financial instrument in the Group's financial
statements may be partially in the scope of IFRS 9 and partially in the scope of IFRS 15. If this is the
case, the Group first applies IFRS 9 to separate and measure the part of the contract that is within
the scope of IFRS 9 and then applies IFRS 15 to the residual. The Group's revenue relates to the
sale of held-for-trading investments and the sale of digital assets.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

Interest income and expense is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments or recsipts through the expected life of the instrument, or when appropriate, a
shorter period to that instrument’s carrying amount.

When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the instrument but not future credit losses. The calculation includes payments
or receipts that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other
discounts or premiums.

Generally fee and commission income, is recognised as the related services are performed. Other
fee and commission expenses are expensed as the services are rendered.
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2.2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND REPORTING PROCEDURES {continued)
2.2.15 Administrative expenses

Operating expenses are recognised in the profit or loss and other statement of comprehensive
income upon utilisation of the service or at the date of their origin.

2.2.16 Finance costs

Finance expenses comprise interest on borrowings, unwinding of the discount on provisions and
impairment losses recognised on financial assets. All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
using the effective interast method.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs include interest on bank overdrafts and borrowings and finance charges on finance
leases. Borrowing costs and finance charges directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale is capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

The amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is the actual borrowing costs incurred on
that borrowing during the period less any investment income on the temporary investment of that
borrowing. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

2.2.17 Surplus and deficits

Only surpluses that were realised at the date of the Statement of Financial Position are recognised
in these Financial Statements. All foreseeable liabilities and potential deficits arising up to the said
date are accounted for even if they become apparent between the said date and the date on which
the Financial Statements are approved.

2.2.18 Treasury Stock

The Group is allowed to repurchase common stock anytime that it is believed to be beneficial to the
Group and its shareholders. The program continues to allow share repurchase in the open market.

The Group can either retire the repurchased stocks or keep them as Treasury stock available for
reissuance. When sold these will be reflected as a credit for any additional cash surplus in equity.

Upon issuance of the treasury stock, adjustments will be reflected against Share premium account

to neutralize the effect on retained earnings, to the extent originally debited, and which would have
resulted from the original acquisition of the treasury stock.
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2.2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND REPORTING PROCEDURES {continued)
2.2.19 Foreign currency translation

ftems included in the Financial Statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Group operates. These Financial Statements are presented in
Euro, which is the Group's functional and presentation currency. Assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are franslated into Euro at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date.
Transactions in foreign currency during the period are translated into Euro at the rate of exchange
ruling on the date of the transaction. All profits and losses on exchange are dealt with through the
profit and loss account.

2.2.20 Capital management policies and procedures

The Group's capital consists of its net assets, including working capital, presented by its retained
funds. The Group's capital management objectives are to ensure its ability to continue as a going
concern, to maintain a positive working capital ratio, and to provide an adequate return to
shareholders. The Group uses budgets and business plans to set its strategy to optimise its use of
available funds and implement its commitments to its primary stakeholders.

2.2.21 Significant judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that effect the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable and reliable in
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about camying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which estimates is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

The main assumptions and estimates are made in estimating the fair value of available-for-sale
financial instruments not quoted in active markets. Management is required to make certain
assumptions and estimates in arriving at an appropriate fair value, based on the application of
valuation techniques that make use of available observable market data. A change in assumptions
and estimates could affect the reported fair value of these financial instruments.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

3. REVENUE
Group Holding
Group (re-stated) Holding (re-stated)
2022 2021 2022 2021
€ € € €
Revenue comprises the following:
Sale of investments at FVTPL - 2,778,797 - 2,778,797
Sale of digital assets 89,713 7,972,073 - 7,972,073
Advisory services - 97.500 - -
Exercise of exchangeable note - 2,348,575 - 2,348,575
€ 89,713 € 13,196,945 € - €13,099,445
4. FINANCE INCOME/ (COSTS)
Group Group Holding Holding
2022 2021 2022 2021
€ € € €
Bank interest and charges (272,582) (722,117) (272,435) (721,585)
Other interest on loans (77,863) (327,221) (77.863) (327,221)
Realised gain/ (loss) on exchange 359,487 (155,431) 359,487 (155,431)
€9,042 €(1,204,769) €9,189 € (1,204,237)
5. LOSS FOR THE YEAR BEFORE TAX
Group Group Holding Holding
2022 2021 2022 2021
€ € € €
Profit for the year before tax is stated after charging:
Total remuneration payable to the extemal auditors:
- Assurance services 42,000 20,400 42,000 16,000
- Other non-assurance
services 2112 4,555 - 4,300
€ 46,987 € 24,955 € 42,000 € 20,300
Directors' emoluments:
- Non-executive director 12,000 12,000 12,000 12,000
- Director's salary as part-
time employee 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000
- Director's salary as full-
time employee 174,368 181,182 174,368 181,182
€ 246,368 € 253,182 € 246,368 € 253,182
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

5. LOSS FOR THE YEAR BEFORE TAX (continued)

Compensation to other key management personne! is analysed as follows:

Group Group Holding Holding
2022 2021 2022 2021
- Remuneration as full-time
employee € 245,148 € 189,778 € 236,019 € 180,109
6. EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS
Group Group Holding Holding
2022 2021 2022 2021
Salaries, including directors’ remuneration:
Wages and salaries € 491,516 € 430,960 € 482,387 € 428,548
Managerial and administration 3 3 3 3
Average number of employees —
Full time equivalents: 3 3 3 3
7. EARNINGS/ (LOSS) PER SHARE
Group Group Holding Holding
2022 2021 2022 2021
Earnings/ (Loss) per share € (3.6) € 0.81 €(3.65) €0.79

The earnings/ (loss) per share have been calculated on the net profit/ (loss) of the Group, as shown in
statement of profit and loss, divided by the average number of shares in issue.

Earnings/ (Loss) per share of the Group was calculated on the loss attributable to shareholders of the
Group of € 210,888,021 (2021: profit of € 46,614,6866), divided by average number of shares of

57,217,500.

Earnings/ (Loss) per share of the Holding Company was calculated on the loss attributable to
shareholders of the company of € 208,794,147 (2021: profit of € 45,022,139) divided by average

number of shares of 57,217,500.
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SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC

(formerly Cryptology Asset Group plc)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

8. TAXATION

Comprising:
Deferred taxation
Curmrent taxation

Tax (income)/ expense

Group Group Holding Holding
2022 2021 2022 2021

€ € € €

(986) (820,382) - (820,382)
(45,475) 53,054 - -
€(46,461) €(767,328) € -  €(820,382)

The tax effect at the applicable tax rate on the accounting result and the tax charge for the year are

reconciled as follows:

Loss before taxation

Tax at the applicable rate of 5%
(2021: 35%)

Tax effect on disallowed expenses

Tax effect on fair value adjustments

Tax effect on consolidation adjustment
relating to dividend income
Qver-provision of tax in previous year
Other tax adjustments

9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Digital assets:

Cost

Allowance for Impairment
provisions/ losses

Movements during the year:
Additions
Impairment provisions/ losses

(6,263,060} (1,069,230) (4,380,345) (2,704,811)
313,153 370,731 219,017 946,684
(511,120) 290,616 (219,017) 290,381
106,031 108,287 - 749,658
- 118,236 - -
45,475 - - -
- {1,655,198) - (2,807,106)
€ (46,461) € (767,328) € - € (820,382)
Group Group Holding Holding
2022 2021 2022 2021
€ € € €
817,926 817,926 817,926 817,926
(817,926) (817,926) (817,926) {817,926)
€ - € - € - € -
- 817,928 - 817,926
- (817,926) - (817,926}
€ - € - € - € -
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SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
(formerly Cryptology Asset Group pic)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - Group

Computer and other Computer
office equipment software Total
€ € €
Cost
At 1 January 2022 4,772 46,420 51,192
Additions 8,503 - 8,503
At 31 December 2022 13,275 46,420 59,695
Depreciation )
At 1 January 2022 3,188 41,215 44 403
Charge for the year 2,130 5,205 7,335
At 31 December 2022 5,318 46,420 51,738
Net Book Value
At 31 December 2022 € 7,957 € - € 7,957
10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - Group
Computer and other Computer Total
office equipment software
€ €
Cost
At 1 January 2021 & 31 December 2021 4772 46,420 51,192
Depreciation
At 1 January 2021 1,995 28,809 30,804
Charge for the year 1,193 12,406 13,599
At 31 December 2021 3,188 41,215 44,403
Net Book Value
At 31 December 2021 €1,584 € 5,205 €6,789
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SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
{formerly Cryptolagy Asset Group plc)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 Dacember 2022

10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - Holding

COST
At 1 January 2022 4,171 43,725 47,896
Additions 8,503 - 8,603
At 31 December 2022 12,674 43,725 56,399
DEPRECIATION
At 1 January 2022 2,738 38,520 41,258
Charge for the year 1,979 5,205 7,184
At 31 Dacember 2022 4,717 43,725 48,442
NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 December 2022 € 7,957 € = € 7,957
10. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - Holding
Computer and other  Computer
office equipment software Total
€ € €

COST
At 1 January 2021 4,171 43,725 47,896
Additions - - .
At 31 December 2021 4,171 43,725 47,896
DEPRECIATION
At 1 January 2021 1,695 26,787 28,482
Charge for the year 1,043 11,733 12,776
At 31 December 2021 2,738 38,520 41,2568
NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 December 2021 € 1,433 € 5,205 € 6,638
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SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
(formerly Cryptology Asset Group pic)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

11. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES - Holding Company

2022 2021
€ €

Cost
As at 1 January 240 240
Additions during the year 200,000 -
As at 31 December € 200,240 € 240
As at 31 December 2022, the Group held the following equity interest:
Subsidlary and its Number, class & nominal Percentage of issued
registered office value of shares held shares held
Samara Advisory Limited 1,199 ordinary ‘A’ shares of 99.9%
Beatrice, 66 & 67, €1 each, 20% paid-up
Amery Street,

Sliema, SLM 1707, Malta

The financial statements of Samara Advisory Limited (formerly Cryptology Advisory Limited)
prepared using the IFRSs as adopted by the EU and have been audited in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing.

The share capital and reserves of Samara Advisory Limited (formerly Cryptology Advisory Limited)
at the balance sheet date stood as follows:

2022 2021

€ €

Ordinary share capital 240 240
Retained earnings {117,104) 1,976,770

€(116,864) €1,977,010

Subsidiary and its Number, class & nominal Percentage of
registered office value of shares held issued shares held
Iconiq Lab U.S Accelerator Inc 4,500,000 ordinary shares 100%
1890 Seventh Avenue, 2A, of $ 0.00001 each

New York NY 10026

USA

The investment was purchased on 29 December 2022. The ﬁnanclal statements of the company
have not as yet been prepared.
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SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
(formerly Cryptology Asset Group plc)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
12. DEFERRED TAXATION

At 1 January Recognisedin At 31 December
2022 profit or loss 2022
Group
Unutilised tax losses € 1,190,076 € 986 € 1,191,062
Holding
Unutilised tax losses € 1,190,076 € - €1,190,076
13. INVESTMENTS AT FVOCI
Quoted equily and other non-fixed income instruments measured at FVOCI:
Group Holding
Group (re-stated) Holding (re-stated)
2022 2021 2022 2021
€ € € €
Investments at FVOCI:
Opening balance 155,109,413 184,461,044 155,109,413 184,461,044
Movements (at cost) 15,166,500 928,402 15,166,500 928,402
Fair Value Movements (Note a) (158,500,475) (30,280,033} (158,500,475) (30,280,033}
11,775,438 155,109,413 11,775,438 155,109,413

Unquoted equity and other non-fixed income instruments measured at FVOCI:

Group Group Holding Holding
2022 {re-stated) (re-stated)
2021 2022 2021
€ € € €
Investments at FVOC!;

Opening balance 251,504,146 135,460,817 251,504,146 135,460,817
Movemenits (at cost) (46,266,987) 38,856,728 (46,266,987) 38,856,728
Unrealized gain on exchange 478,529 3,389,827 478,528 3,389,827
Fair Value Movements (Note a) (46,391,856) 73,796,774  (46,391,856) 73,796,774
159,323,832 251,504,146 159,323,832 251,504,146

Asset-Managed investment (Note b}
Opening balance - 6,306,714 - 6,306,714
Unrealized gain on exchange - {6,308,714) - (6,306,714)

Total investments at FVOCI

€ 171,099,270 € 406,613,569 € 171,099,270 € 406,613,559
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SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
(formerly Cryptology Asset Group plc)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

(a) Fair Value Movaments

The fair value basis measurement of quoted investments has been determined on the basis of Level
1 inputs, being the quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date. The fair value of the investment at the reporting date
decreased from € 155 Million at year end to € 12 Million at the reporting date.

The fair value basis measurement of unquoted Investments has been determined on the basis of
Level 3 criteria. The investment group classification method has been used whereby assets were
sub-divided between classifications of sub-groups and analysed on basis of observable and
unobservable market data. Management is required to use its own assumptions regarding
unobservable inputs because there is little market activity and is unable to corroborate the related
observable inputs. Unobservable inputs require management to make certain projections about the
information that would be used by market participants in valuing assets or liabilities.

The basis has been derived by analyzing the underlying assets in the investee companies through a
combination of valuation techniques. In applying the valuation technique, management also adopted
other criteria to factor market changes in the underlying assets and other sensitive market variations
in the valuation.

The data sensitivity analysis was carried out from unaudited sources but was independently
extracted from information provided by third parties and management representations. Other
observable market information was obtained and the valuation technique models were compared to
other observable market information as follows:

i. Share prices of other share transfers effected subsequent to the Group's acquisition of
shares, representing the price buyers in the market are willing to pay for the shares in
investee companies;

ii. Shareholders’ reports prepared by Management confirming the price the investee company
is willing to offer for the investment. These represent price indicators to investors from
valuation techniques performed by Management;

iii. Share buy-backs by the investee companies offering existing holders the option to sell the
shares; and

iv. Net Asset Value techniques on investee companies arriving at the share base.

On this basis, valuation techniques were carried out on the financials of the investee companies and
data inputs were affected to consider future cashflows and other market available information. In
determining the fair value, we analysed the underlying assets, and impairment tests were provided
on the sub-classifications of assets to take into account the inherent variations and volatility of the
balances.
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SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
{formerly Cryptology Asset Group plc)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

13. INVESTMENTS AT FVOCI (continued)
(a) Fair Value Movements (continued)

In carrying out the above analysis we determined the Net Asset Value and compared to observable
inputs disclosed above, including share prices for other share transfers effected. This could only be
applied if the observable market data and share prices for similar investors investing in the same
investee companies could be substantiated to underlying company valuations and future company
potential.

The fair value movements included in the quoted investments amounted to a decrease of
€158,500,475 (2021 - decrease of € 30,280,033). The fair value movements included in the
unquoted investments amount to a decrease of € 46,391,856 (2021 - increase of € 73,796,774).
The net total decrease of € 204,892,331 (2021 - increase of € 43,516,741) is reflected in Other
Comprehensive Income. The Company shall be consistent in applying such valuation methods from
one period to the next. Quantitative and qualitative information about unobservable inputs and
assumptions are also used.

(b) Assets offered as Collateral

At year end, included within quoted AFS investments, there were 1,326,942 shares to the value of €
8,173,962 at year end, which are being collateralized in favour of a related party. Interest of 5% per
annum was being charged on the amounts being offered as collateral.

(c) Assset-Managed Investment

The Asset-Managed Investment as disclosed in the investments at FVOCI is represented by a
corresponding exchangeable note included within non-current liabilities under Note 17 to the
financial statements to the equivalent amount.

The fair value of the Asset-Managed Investment was calculated solely for the scope of determining
a potential future unrealized gain, using the same valuation techniques applied for the other
investments held by the Company. The exchangeable note can be exercised within a period of five
years against the Asset-Managed Investment.

Upon the exercise of the exchangeable note, a gain may crystallize to the Company based on the
fair value increases of the Asset-Managed Investment on the date of the transfer. In March 2021,
the exchangeable note had been execulted, and gains of € 2,348,575 have been materialized based
on the fair value determination of the investment.
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SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC

(formerly Cryptology Asset Group plc)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

14. OTHER ASSETS

Quoted virtual currencies
Opening balance
Additions

Disposals

Fair value movements

Unquoted virtual currencies
Opening balance

Additions

Disposals

Fair value movements

Note:

Group Group Holding Holding
2022 2021 2022 2021

€ € € €
1,916,290 8,542 8,542 8,542
54,541 75,258 : -
(65,776) - - -
(1,896,513) 1,832,490 - -
8,542 1,916,290 8,542 8,542
92,199 - - -
363,016 92,199 - =
{231,106) - - -
(224,109) - - -
- 92,199 - -

€8,542 €2,008,489 € 8,542 € 8,542

Virtual currencies are classified as other assets and recognized at fair value. Fair value changes in
the carrying amount are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.
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SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
(formerly Cryptology Asset Group pic)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
15. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Group Group Holding Holding
(re-stated) (re-stated)
2022 2021 2022 2021
€ € € €
Amounts falling due after more than one year:
Convertible Note (note a) - 375,281 - 375,281
Loans receivable from third parties - 848,771 - 848,711
Other receivables 931,768 - 931,766 -
€931,766 €1,224,052 € 031,766 1,224,052
Amounts falling due after more than one year:
Amounts due from subsidiary (note b) - - 97,180 -
Loan advances to (note ¢} :
Related party 500,000 - 500,000 -
Third party 2,822,257 200,000 2,822,257 200,000
Convertible Notes {note d) 100,000 1,100,000 100,000 1,100,000
Advanced payments to suppliers - 24,550 - 24,550
Other debtors (note e) - 1,728,253 - 1,728,253
Amounts due from related parties 281 281 - -
Taxation refundable - - 118,236 118,236
VAT recoverable 18,694 $,997 17,695 5,097
Prepayments and accrued income 645,977 77,972 645,977 77,055
€ 4,087,209 € 3,137,063 €4,301,345 € 3,254,091

Notes:

(@)

(b}
(c)

(d)

(e

At 31 December 2021, the convertible note carried interest at the rate of 2% per annum. The
issuer granted each noteholder the right to convert each Note, in whole, but not in part, at any
time during the Conversion period, with the final maturity date being set at 30 April 2023.

At 31 December 2022, convertible notes amounted to € 3,358,933, against which a provision for
impairment was provided for,

Amounts due from subsidiary are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

Loan advances to related party bear interest of 5.5% per annum. Loan advances to third party
bear interest at the rate of 10% per annum, are unsecured and are repayable within one year.

Convertible notes consist of an amount of € 1 million which bears interest at the rate of 10 % per
annum. This was exercised in March 2022 through a conversion of shares. The remaining
amounts of € 100,000 represent a convertible note which bears interest at the rate of 10% per
annum,

Other debtors represent amounts which were paid by the company for purchase of investments
at FVOCI. The share transfer agreement was affected between the contractual parties, but the
share transfer was not accepted and registered by the investee. The amount was settled during
the year under review.
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SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
{formerly Cryptology Asset Group pic)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

16. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES - Group and Holding Company

{a) Share Capital

2022 2021
Authorised
64,000,000 Ordinary shares of € 0.05 each € 3,200,000 € 3,200,000
Issued, allotted and 100% paid up
57,217,500 Ordinary shares of € 0.05each € 2,860,875 € 2,860,875
{b) Share Premium
Opening balance 54,053,895 23,862,113
Increase during the year - 31,840,000
Issuance of treasury stocks - (1,648,218)
Closing balance €54,053,895 €54,053,895
{c) Treasury stock
Closing balance € 81,118 € -

Note:

During an Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 30" May 2022, the members present resolved to
acquire, in its own name, the Group’s shares subject to the following conditions:

- Maximum quantity of shares shall not exceed 10% of the issued shares;
- Authority to acquire own shares shall be valid for 18 months; and
- Maximum price to buy-back the shares shall not exceed €80 per share.

As at 31% December 2020, the Company had acquired a total of 31,481 own shares at a price of €
1,669,123. An amount of € 1,637,632, representing the excess above par value, was reflected
against retained earings. During 2021, the company had acquired 134 own shares at a price of €
10,720. An amount of € 10,586, representing the excess above par value, was reflected against
retained earnings.

By 31 December 2021, all treasury stock has been issued. An adjustment of € 1,648,218 was
reflected against Share premium account to neutralize the effect on retained eamings, which would
have resulted from the original acquisition of the treasury stock.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company had acquired a total of 81,118 own shares at a price of €

3,697,809. An amount of € 3,616,691, representing the excess above par value, was reflected
against rétained eamings. '
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16. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES — Group and Holding Company (continued)
{d) Fair value reserve

Fair value reserve represents the accumulated changes in fair value of the company’s investments
at FVOCI. Upon disposal of the investments, the related fair value will be transferred directly to
retained earnings.

{e) Retained earnings

Retained earnings represent the accumulated operating profits after taxation after adjusting for other
comprehensive income, resulting in total retained earnings for the group € 44,383,488 (2021 - €
72,762,796) and for the holding € 44,500,592 (2021 - € 70,786,026) at year end. This primarily
comprises the profit attributable to equity holders.

17. INTEREST-BEARING LOANS

Group Group Holding Holding

2022 2021 2022 2021

Bank loan advances {note a) - €2,012,505 €2,012,505
Third party (note b) € 4,404,899 - €4,404,899 -

Note:

(a) The bank loan of € 2 Million has been granted for the purchase of securities. It carried
interest on the basis of the three-month Euribor plus 2.5% per annum, subject ta a minimum
interest rate per annum of 2.5%. This was repaid during the year.

{b) In 2022, the Company acquired loan from Equities First Holdings, LLC amounting to € 5.1
million. It carries a fixed simple interest of 3.6% per annum. Partial payment has been made

during 2022,
18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Group Group Holding Holding
2022 2021 2022 2021
€ € € €
Bank overdrafts (note a) 698,113 5,992,934 698,113 5,992,934
Amounts payable to subsidiary
undertakings (note b) - - - 46,554
Loan advances from third party (note c) - 600,000 - 600,000
Capital creditors (note e) - 19,503,547 - 19,503,547
Trade creditors 104,958 9,650 107,958 5,150
Taxation (note f) 7,579 53,054 - -
Accruals 12,975 38,113 106,261 143,063

€816,046 €26,197,298 €012,332 € 26,291,248
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SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)
Notes:

(a) Bank overdrafts represent short-term facilites with Baader Bank provided for the purchase of
AFS investments. These are pledged over the said investments held by the Group.

(b) Amounts payable to the subsidiary undertakings are unsecured, interest free and are repayable
on demand.

(c} Loan advances from third party bear interest at the rate of 5% per annum, and are repayable
within one year.

(d) Capital creditors consist of an investment obligation towards the purchase of investments from a
third party. Both contractual parties agreed to cancel the loan with a corresponding reduction in
investment value. This cancellation was executed on 9 January 2022,

(f) Taxation Group Group Halding Holding

2022 2021 2022 2021

€ € € €

Opening balance 53,054 125,311 - -

Tax charge for the year - 53,054 - -
Prior period adjustment (45,475) -

Settlement tax paid 7,579 (125,311) - -

€7579 € 53,054 € - € -
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(formerly Cryptology Asset Group plc)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

19. NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(a) Cash (used in} operations

(Loss) before taxation
Adjustment for:

Depreciation

Interest receivable

Interest payable

Fair value movements
Impairment loss on intangibles
Loss on disposal of intangibles
Goodwill recognized

Operating {loss)
Movement in digital assets
Movement in receivables
Movemenit in payables

Cash {used in) operating activities

(b} Cash and cash equivalents

Group Group Holding Holding
{re-stated) (re-stated)

2022 2021 2022 2021

€ € € €
(6,520,680) (1,059,230) (4,380,345) (2,704,811)
7,335 13,589 7,184 12,776
(669,557) (886,103) (669,557) (886,103)
165,269 550,579 165,269 550,047
2,120,622 309,392 - 2,141,882
3,734,214 817,926 3,734,214 817,926
(82,995) - (82,995) -
(200,000} - - -
{1,445,792) (253,837) (1,226,230) (68,283)
(120,675) (7.881) - 169,576
1,655,088 (1,228,297) 1,655,169 (1,228,298)
65,124 (115,708) 68,5398 (433,982)
€153,745 € (1,605,723) € 497,478 € (1,570,987)

Cash and cash equivalents consist of balance with banks. Cash and cash equivalents included in the
statement of cashflows and the statement of financial position comprise the following amounts:

Cash at bank
Bank overdraft

20. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(a) Balances

Group Group Holding Holding

2021 2021 2022 2021

€ € € €

432,954 1,353,430 432,854 1,353,430

(698,112} {5.992,934) {698,112) (5.992,934)
€(265,168)  €(4,639,504)

€(265,168) € (4,639,504)

Amount due from and to related undertakings are disclosed in notes 18 to the financial statements.
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20. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)
{(b) Transactions

During the year under review, the Group carried cout transactions, in its normal course of the business
and on an arm’s length basis, with the foliowing related undertakings:

Name of entity Nature of relationship
Apeiron Investment Group Limited Majority Shareholder
Apeiron 101 Ltd Related Undertaking
Apeiron Advisory Limited Related Undertaking
PreSight Capital Limited Related Undertaking
Grey Study Capital Gmbh Related Undertaking

The following was the only transaction carried out by the Group with related undertakings having
significant control:

2022 2021
€ €

Transactions with majority shareholder and related parties:
income
Recharge of administrative and finance costs to shareholder 252,444 583,528
Costs
Recharge of administrative and finance costs from shareholder
and related parties 112,141 68,007

{b) Majority Shareholder and Ultimate Beneficiary Owner

The majority shareholder of the company is Apeiron Investment Group Limited, holding 49.92 %
(2021: 54.06%}) of total shareholding, with the remaining shareholding being held by various other
members, with a percentage holding of less than 20% each.

Apeiron Investment Group Limited is a company registered in Malta, with its registered address at
66 8 67, Beatrice, Amery Street, Sliema, SLM 1707, Malta.

The ultimate beneficial owner of Apeiron Investment Group Limited is Mr. Christian Berthold
Angermayer, a German National with Passport Number C4YMOOZWL.

21. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

By their nature, the Group's activities are principally related to the use of financial instruments. The
main activity of the Group is to invest in blockchain-modet companies. It is established knowiedge
that the activities will potentially expose it to a variety of risks, including credit risk, liquidity risk,
market risk and currency risk. :
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

21. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The Group's risk management is coordinated by the managing Director and the Advisory Board and
focuses on actively securing the Group’s short to medium term cash flow by minimising exposure to
financial risks. The Group’s aim is to disclose possible relevant information to enable users of the
Financial Statements to evaluate the nature, extent and precautions taken of risks arising from
financial instruments to which the Group is exposed at the end of the financial period.

211 Credit risk

This represents the risk of loss of principat or loss of interest to be earned from a borrower's failure
in repaying debts or else failure to meet contractual obligations. The credit risk arises every time the
Group may want to use future cash flows through the payment of current obligation. In this scenario,
the credit risk may be either on the borrower, where an obligation to repay both the principal and the
interest accrue in favour of the lender, or to the investor who has placed funds in securities or
loaned money where a foreseeable repayment of debt and interest thereon is contemplated.

Credit risk may also be related to an investment's return where yields on bonds correspond to their
supposed credit risk. The Group's exposure to credit risk related to the camying amount of the
current financial assets, recognised at the end of the reporting period, as summarised below:

Notes 2022 2021
€ €
Class of financial assets — carrying amounts:
Other assets 14 8,542 2,008,489
Trade and other receivables {(excluding VAT and
prepayments and accrued income) 15 4,354,304 4,277,136
Cash and cash equivaients 19 (b) 432,954 1,353,430

4,795,800 7,639,055

During the year under review, the Group held non-cash current assets that were not subject to any
risk for liquidating them.

The majority of the traded financial assets and accounts receivables will be eventually liquidated.
Furthermore, the Group continuously monitors defaults of counterparties, identified either
individually or by group, and incorporates this information into its credit risk controls. The Group's
policy is to deal with only creditworthy counterparties.

The Company considers that the above financial assets that are not impaired for each of the
reporting dates under review are of good credit quality, including those that are past due.

The credit risk for Cash and Cash Equivalents is considered negligible, since the counterparties are
reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings.
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21. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
211 Credit risk (continued)
Exposure to Credit risk on investments at FVTOCI securities and FVTPL virtual currencies

The Group assesses whether financial instruments have experienced a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. When determining whether the risk of default on a financial instrument
or a digital asset has increased significantly, the Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
guantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the consultants' historical experience
in relation to digital assets and shareholder's historical experience and due diligence and KYC
procedures affected on the investee companies. The objective of the assessment is to identify
whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred for an exposure by comparing:

- The remaining lifetime probability of default as at reporting date; with

- The remaining lifetime probability of default for this point in time that was estimated at the
time of initial recognition of the exposure.

21.2 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments
associated with financial instruments. Liquidity risk may result from an inability to sell a financial
asset quickly at close to its fair value.

This is an important measure to take cognisance since any assets held by the Group should be
saleable when contemplating in generating immediate cash requirements.

In this scenario, the Group does take note of the fact that the market may be illiquid, hence the
liquidity risk factor, or quite liquid, hence the financial asset held by the Group will increase in value
as there will be no potential capital loss in sight.

At 31 December, the company's financial liabilities have contractual maturities which are
summarised below:

Current Non-Current
As of 31 December 2021 Due within one Due between
Note year two to five years
€ €

Financial liabilities:
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 18/17 6,592,934 2,012,505
Trade and other payables (excluding taxation) 18 19,551,310 -

€ 26,144,244 € 2,012,505
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21. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

21.2 Liquidity risk

Current Non-Current
As of 31 December 2022 Due within one Due betwoen
Note year two to five years
€ €

Financial liabilities:
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 18 698,113 4,404,899
Trade and other payables (excluding taxation) 18117 117,933 -

€ 816,046 € 4,404,899

The Group is confident that it will be in a good position to honour its obligations with the bank,
through the sale of some of its investments or through leveraging with other bankers. Furthermore,
the Group has support of its related parties. In this respect, the Group did not require immediate
cash to execute its activity, hence the liquidity risk was minimal, if at all. Any new investment
projects shall be financed in new cash-rounds through fresh capital from new and/or existing
members or through bank financing.

21.3 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk
and other price risk. It arises in all areas of the Group's activities and is managed by a variety of
different techniques as detailed below.

The objective of the Group is to manage and control market risk exposures in order to optimise
return on risk while maintaining a market profile consistent with the Group’s strategy. The major risk
here is the movement of equity prices, particularly in this sector of business. The risk is mitigated by
the fact, that management make a selection of investments built from experience and by
determining the market risk commensurate with the return on them. Whilst it is Management's
responsibility and commitment to focus on such unpredictability of the markets, these are minimized
as much as possible. The selected investment portfolio of the Group, with its strong performance
and its strong demand, gives the Group confidence of a stable position that is expected to reap even
higher results in the foreseeable future.

The Group has also participated in US hedge funds in order to ensure its portfolio is rebalanced.
The Group's Advisory Board is being structured to take these considerations into account and with
the sole aim io advise when, where and how to purchase and/or sell financial assets. If one
considers the economic factors that were brought into play during the year under review, the Group
is acting prudently when carrying out investments in digital assets and is carrying out detailed
scrutiny on quality digital assets including Bitcoin and Ethereum. This is being done in the most
prudent and strategic way possible in line with the liquidity required by the Group.

43



SAMARA ASSET GROUP PLC
(formerly Cryptology Asset Group plc)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

21. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
21.3.1 Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument would
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group's exposure to interest rate risk is
limited to the variable interest rate of interest- bearing loans and borrowings. Cash and cash
equivalents issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Management
monitors the level of floating rate bank balances as a measure of cash flow risk taken on.

Based on this analysis, management considers the potential impact on profit or loss of a defined
interest rate shift that is reasonably possible at the end of the reporting period is to be immaterial, in
view of the Group's limited exposure to bank and barrowings. Through strong business relations
with the bank, together with the strong and profitable investments that are being hypothecated, the
Group managed {0 negotiate a favourable interest rate. Such scenario is expected to continue in the
coming months.

21.3.2 Currency risk

Exchange-rate risk arises from the change in price of one in relation to another and the fair value or
a future cash-flow transaction emanating from the sale or purchase of a financial instrument where
exchange rate fluctuations may occur. Since one of its major investments lies across national
border and this is predominantly in US Dollars, the Group recognises that this might create an
unpredictable gain or loss. At the reporting rate the exchange date has moved in favour of the
Group.

The Group intends to mitigate currency risk by investing predominantly in Euro and in US Dollars,
both of which are stable currencies. Further, during the year under review, the Group bhas also
embarked to invest in hedge funds to mitigate the exposure to risk arising from transactions
denominated in US Dollars. The investments held that are denominated in US Dollars are expected
to accrus higher returns than the currency risks that may arise.

21.3.3 Other price risk

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or
currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial
instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The Group is exposed to equity price risks arising from the holding of equity instruments classified
either as available for sale or at fair value through profit or loss. The carrying amounts of financial
instruments at the reporting date which could potentially subject the Group to equity price risk are
disclosed in notes 13 and 14 to the financial statements. The Group counteracts the price risk by
adopting an investment strategy of investing in start-up companies with a potential for growth and
consequent increase in their market prices. The major drivers are expected to continue to perform
strongly in.the future and to increase in value due to their decentralized operations in blockchain
modals, social media, as well as having the largest data centre in the world.
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21.3.3 Other price risk (continued)

Such factors are the current driving-force of these companies which are working in a decentralized
manner under the present situation.

21.3.4 Other risks

In view of the inherent volatility of the assets invested in by the Group, the management will take
safeguards not {o inflate unnecessarily and incorrectly the valuations thereof, Coupled with this
approach, there is also risk on fair value computation risk in view of the fact that investees may
either not be prompt in providing information or the financial information provided does not carry an
independent assurance verification. Consequently, the Management takes responsibility in adopting
proper tools in valuing its financial assets.

After year end, the Group exposed itself to a collateral risk with related party, which comprises
1,326,942 shares in a quoted equity investment which had a Market value of € 8,173,962 Million at
year end. Significant fluctuations in the market prices have affected the value of the investment which
continues to be monitored in the light of market conditions. This could give rise to further exposure to
the Group in view of the decreased values on the investments thersin stated and with possible claims
on the collateralized assets.

22, CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's capital management objectives are to ensure its ability to continue as a going concemn
and to provide an adequate return to shareholders. The Group's equity, as disclosed in the
statement of financial position, constitutes its capital. The Group’s capital structure is monitored by
the Directors with appropriate reference to its financial obligations and commitments arising from
operational requirements. In view of the nature of its activities, the capital level as at the end of the
reporting period is deemed adequate by the Group.

23. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group's accounting policy for determining the fair value of financial instruments is described in
notes 2.2.1, 2.2.2, 2.2.3 and 2.2.12 to the financial statements. For financial reporting purposes,
fair value measurements are categarised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair values measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices unadjusted in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement date.

- Level 2 inpuls are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable
for the asset or liability, whether directly or indirectly. This category includes instruments vaiued
using: quoted market prices in active markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for identical
or similar instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are
considered less than active; or other valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are
directly or indirectly observable from market data.
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23. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {continued)

- Level 3 inputs are observable inputs for the asset or liability. This category includes all
instruments for which the valuation technigue includes inputs not based on cbservable data and
the unobservable inputs that have a significant effect on the instruments' valuation. This
category includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for similar instruments for
which significant unobservable adjustments or adjustments are required to reflect differences
between the instruments.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring
basis, the Group determines when transfers are deemed to have occurred between Levels in the
hierarchy at the end of each reporting period.

Basis of valuing financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value:

Assets Level 1 Level 2 Lovel 3 Total
€ € € €
Investments at FVOCI 11,775,438 - 159,323,832 171,099,270

The instruments classified within Level 3 comprise investments at FVOCI. In this respect, it has to
be ascertained whether the financial asset is active or not in the market, hence obtaining financial
information from the respective investees.

Whilst acknowledging that valuations only provide an estimate of true value, yet the Group ensures
to be closest to accuracy by selecting the best practices in a valuation technique. As contemplated
in IFRS 13, the fair value measurement shall assume that a transaction takes place at that date,
considered from the perspective of a market participant that holds the financial asset. Therefore, our
valuation of ‘Fair Value' is the price that a financial asset can be sold at in an orderly transaction in a
market on that date under market conditions, irrespective as to whether the price is observable on
an Exchange or using a valuation approach.

During the year under review, the Group held shares that are not easily observable in arriving at fair
value. Such shares are not traded in the open market whilst the financial information available from
the investee lacks detail. However, the Group holds information where shares are being traded
much higher than the original cost. The Group is unable to carry out an exhaustive search to identify
the market price but intends to rest on the latest financing-rounds in the investee at a discounted
price for prudency sake, together with other observable inputs.

For reasons explained above, the Group has no option but to apply level 3 by making its utmost in
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs. In applying level 3, the Group always asks:

- s there an identical item held by another party as an asset?
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If in the affirmative, the Group will use the market value of the market-participant that holds
the identical item;

The Group, always oblains financial information directly from the investee to compare the
Net Asset Value against the market value of the market-participant.

IFRS 13 does not preclude the Group from using our own collected data.

24, SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The following subsequent events took place, as follows:

Through a resolution passed during the year 2022, the Group continued to repurchase own
shares during 2023. An EGM was held on 23™ March 2023 where it was resolved to increase
the maximum of repurchased shares from 10% to 25% of the issued share capital. Up till
time of reporting, 6,184,616 at a total valuation of €21 million.

As already reported in these financials, CAG had purchased on 28" December 2022 a fully
owned subsidiary - lconic Lab U.S. Accelerator Inc. The company purchased had an issued
share capital of 4.5 Million Common Stock at par value of US$0.00001 per share and is
regulated under the laws of Delaware.

During 2023, the Group continued to support its subsidiary (lconic Lab U.S.) with further
injection of funds to meet its operational costs. Such capital contributions to the wholly
owned subsidiary are not expected to be repaid by the subsidiary now or in the future.
Samara Asset Group plc, as the holding company, will support the subsidiary in its
endeavours to contribute to the enhancement of investment value.

In January 2023, the Group participated in a buyback exercise with Block.one. 7,000 shares
in Block.one were sold at the price of US$3,000 each and the transaction was completed by
219 January 2023,

On 2" February 2023, the Group entered in an buy-back agreement with its majority
shareholder for the repurchase of 3,428,580 CAG shares at the price of €3.50 each. The
amount of €12,000,030 was fully paid on 3" February 2023,

On 11" February 2023, the Group entered in a buy-back contract with one of the Group’s
shareholders for the repurchase of 1,061,008 CAG shares at €3.77 each. The amount of
€4,000,000.16 was fully paid by 12" February 2023,

The Asset under Management agreement signed with Lansdowne Investments in February
2018 has been extended up till 31% December 2023. Meantime, the 2™ tranche of promote
shares that were liguidated on the strength of such agreement materialized in March 2023
and booked at the value of US$861,000 (€ 815,000).
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. The Company had re-activated its interest to plan listing on the Toronto Stock Exchange.
Discussions with the Exchange via assistance from established and renowned law firm are

still underway.

. The Advisory Board has recommended to enter into a Convertible Loan Agreement with
xPay Holdings AG, in which the Company already holds an equity investment, for the amount
of €1.5M. This amount will increase the convertible loan to €3.3 million and will be exercised

by end of 2023.

. In February 2023, the Company participated in purchases of Northern Data shares up to a
maximum quantity of 50,000 shares at the max price of €11 each.

25. COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Certain comparative figures disclosed in the main components of these financial statements have
been reclassified to conform with the current year's presentation format for the purpose of fairer

presentation.

26. PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENT

Prior year profit and loss figure of € 34,094,836 were initially recorded through a profit from sale of
investments at FVOCI account and is being restated directly to other comprehensive income for the
prior year. The cumulative fair value reserve of the investments at FVOCI were also reciassified from
retained earnings. The effect of the restatement on the financial statements is summarised below:

Statement of comprehensive income
Profit from sale of investments at FVQOCI

Quoted investments at FVOC!: changes

in fair value

Unguoted investments at FVOCI: changes
in fair value

Statement of financial position
Fair value reserve
Retained earnings

2021

As previously 2021
reported Adjustments As restated
€ € €
34,094,836 (34,094,835) -
(28,138,151)  (2,141,882) {30,280,033)
(37,560,057) 36,236,717 73,796,774
- 257,646,079 257,646,079

328,432,105 (257,646,079)
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Independent auditor’s report

To the sharcholders of Samara Asset Group ple (formerly Cryprology Assee Group plc)
Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinign

We have audited the consotidated financial statements of Samara Asset Group ple (formerly Cryptology Asset
Group plc) set out on pages 6 to 48 which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as ar 31
December 2022, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, conselidated statement of changes

in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a suramary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the company as ar 31 December 2022, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the
vear then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union (EU), and have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act, Cap. 386 (the “Act”).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditot’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the [nternational
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together
with the ethical requirements of the Accountancy Profession (Code of Echics for Warrant Holders) Directive
issued in terms of the Accountancy Profession Act, Cap. 281 that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in Malta. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obrained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Other information

The directors ate responsible for the other information, The other information comprises the directors” report
shown on pages 1 to 5 which we obtained priot to the date of this auditor’s report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information

and, in doing so, consider wherher the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

With respect to the directors’ report, we also considered whether the directors’ report includes the disclosures
required by Article 177 of the Act.
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Based on the work we have performed, in our opinion:

* The information given in the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepated is consistent with the financial statements, and

o the directors’ report has been prepared in accordance with the Act

In addition, in light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and its environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we are required to report if we have identified material misstacements in the directors’
report and other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of those charged with governance for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU and are properly prepared in accordance with the
provisions of the Act, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or ertor,

In preparing the consolidated financial statemencs, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless che directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations,
ot have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are responsible for oversecing the group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur objectives are to abrain reasonable assurance about whether the conselidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or crror, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assutance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with 1SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can atise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregare, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, we exetcise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
matetial misstatement tesulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from etror, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
ate approptiate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
cffectiveness of the group’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and telated disclosures made by management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists relared to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the group and the company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. [f we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidared financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions ate based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However future events or conditions may cause the company to cease to
continue as a going concern.
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- Evaluate the overall preseatation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial seatements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

= Obtain sufficient appropriate evidence regarding the financial information of the entities ot business
activitics within the group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direcdon, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that

we identify during our audit.

Raport an other legal and regulatory requirements

We also have responsibilities under the Companies Act, Cap. 386 to report to you if, in our opinion:

= adequate accounting records have not been kept;
- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records; or
= we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report to you in respect of these responsibilities.

‘The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Mark Bugeja.

Mark Bugeja (Partner) for and on behalf of

GRANT THORNTON
Certified Public Accountants

Grant Thotnton

Fort Business Centre

Trig L-Intornjatur, Zone 1
Central Business Discrice
Birkirkara CBD 1050
Malta

28 June 2023
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